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INTRODUCTION 

LETTER TO THE MINISTER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hon. Mark McGowan MLC 
Minister for Education and Training 
 
 
 
12th Floor Dumas House 
2 Havelock Street 
WEST PERTH  WA  6000 
 
 
 
 
In accordance with Section 54 of the Vocational Education and Training Act, 1996 and section 66 
of the Financial Administration and Audit Act, 1985, I hereby submit for your information and 
presentation to Parliament the Annual Report for Central West TAFE for the year ended 31 
December 2006. 
 
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act, 1985. 
 
 
 
 
 
Barry Mitchell 
Chairperson 
College Governing Council 
 
23rd February 2007 
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COLLEGE OVERVIEW 

An Introduction  
 
The Central West region of Western Australia is a large geographical area, covering more than 
600,000 square kilometres. While the area is large the population of around 70,000 is sparsely 
distributed outside the major centres with many remote communities, including many Indigenous 
communities, located long distances from facilities and infrastructure most of us take for granted.  
The region is characterised by a vibrant, resource rich environment with an economic base that 
has traditionally relied upon agriculture, mining and fishing industries. The Central West region, like 
much of Western Australia, has experienced significant growth and development particularly in the 
resources rich mining sector over the past year. The skills shortage in the traditional and highly 
skilled trade’s areas has impacted the region as the workforce has struggled to supply the 
necessary skilled labour to meet demand. Whilst mining and construction have seen the most 
dramatic increase in activity over the past twelve months other industries are also making their 
mark with tourism and related industries such as accommodation and hospitality offering an 
increasingly diverse range of business and employment opportunities.  
 
Central West TAFE has responded to the challenges of delivering high quality vocational education 
and training (VET) programs and services in a dynamic environment. As the major provider of VET 
in the Central West, the College services clients from all areas of the region utilising a range of 
innovative and flexible delivery methods that have increased and improved client access to 
programs both on and off campus. Increasingly training delivery and assessment is being 
conducted in flexible ways including in the workplace, through skills recognition, community based 
training projects and a range of facilitated online options.   
 
The College reaches clients through a major campus located in Geraldton, the economic and 
administrative centre of the region, additional campuses at Carnarvon and Exmouth, a network of 
regional locations and partnerships with the Telecentre Network.  A range of programs is available 
at all Australian Qualifications Framework levels, from entry level training to Advanced Diploma. In 
addition the College works with regional secondary schools to provide VET in Schools 
opportunities and has contracting and partnership arrangements with major universities to deliver 
tertiary courses.  The College provides a range of customised training, adult community education 
and lifestyle programs and consultancy services through its business development arm, Interactive 
Training Network. 
 
The challenges of operating in a regional area present unique opportunities for developing 
innovative and responsive vocational education and training solutions. Central West TAFE has led 
the way in Western Australia in providing high quality VET programs for remote clients. Regional 
delivery is characterised by a strong community consultation process supported by specialist staff 
and through partnerships with community based organisations, enterprises and telecentres.  
Lecturers develop courses that are suited to client needs, providing relevant skills that can be 
applied in the community. Many of the projects undertaken through training are “live work” projects 
that also provide lasting benefits to the communities through the building of new or refurbished 
facilities. 
 
In 2006 the College strengthened its links with industry through consultation and a variety of 
partnerships to ensure that training delivery and assessment options closely reflected the skills 
development needs of regional industries. The year also saw a significant increase in employment 
based training (apprenticeships and traineeships), which is seen as critical in addressing the skills 
shortage and ensuring regional industry is well placed to capitalise on the economic growth being 
experienced throughout the state. 
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Vision and Strategic Priorities 
 
We will provide life long learning opportunities that contribute to the development of individuals, 
enterprises and communities of the Central West region. 
 
Client Service Commitment 

The College has a strong client service commitment and makes use of various methods for 
gathering client feedback to inform continuous improvement activities. The College’s Client Service 
Commitment is outlined in various publications and is displayed in locations throughout the 
College.  

Information and Openness 
We will make sure information about our services and processes is available in an accessible 
format. We will also keep you informed about our performance, as an organisation, by reporting 
annually and making available our plans for the future. 

Courtesy and Helpfulness 
We will make sure that every time you contact us your enquiry is dealt with courteously, promptly 
and by the right person. We will also ensure that access to our services is as equitable as possible 
for all our customers. 

Continuous Improvement 
We are always seeking new and better ways to provide our services. To help us achieve this we 
invite feedback from all our customers. 
 
Strategic Directions 2006 – 2010 

In 2006 a review of the College’s strategic plan “Partnerships with the region: building capacity 
through education and training” was concluded and the renewed document for the 2006 – 2010 
period finalised.  The following six broad directions and priorities were identified through a process 
of consultation and environmental analysis. Details of achievement against these directions in 
2006 are included in the Report on Operations section of this report.  
 
SD1 MEETING THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT NEEDS OF INDUSTRY 

The availability of an appropriately skilled workforce to meet the needs of industry and enterprises 
in the Central West is critical to the ongoing viability of the region’s economy. The College will work 
closely with industry to ensure training is relevant, aligned to regional industry needs and that 
graduates are viewed by industry as job ready and able to contribute to productivity from 
commencement. 

Priorities: 
o Work with industry to service skills shortages 
o Develop new ways of working with industry to service the skills needs of existing 

workers. 
o Service the skills needs of the identified priority industries within the region. 
o Consult and partner with industry to make training industry relevant. 
o Establish partnerships with emerging industries to develop relevant VET. 
o Collaborate with industry to increase the number of apprenticeships and traineeships in 

the Central West. 
 
SD2 TRAINING AND SERVICES THAT MEET THE NEEDS OF THE CENTRAL WEST 

Central West TAFE actively seeks to identify the training needs of the diverse range of clients 
throughout the region and to provide training products and services that meet those needs. 
Training products are identified, designed and delivered to enable client access, provide further 
learning pathways and result in recognised outcomes for the client.   

Priorities: 
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o Provide opportunities for all sections of the community to participate in VET through the 
creation and provision of a broad range of delivery and assessment options that match 
client needs. 

o Provide multiple, flexible pathways for clients that maximise their employment and 
further study options. 

o Increase participation rates and improve outcomes for diverse client groups. 
o Create and maintain a learning environment that encourages participation by all clients 

and facilitates positive learning outcomes. 
o Maintain a culture of continuous improvement to ensure provision of high quality 

training and services. 
o Work collaboratively with other educational and training sectors to provide clients with 

cross-sectoral pathways and ensure the provision of a wide range of learning 
opportunities within the Central West region.  Lead and drive the development of 
Education & Training Precincts within the region. 

 
SD 3 DEVELOPMENT OF SUSTAINABLE REGIONAL COMMUNITIES 

Education and training plays an invaluable role in providing individuals, enterprises and 
communities with skills to achieve sustainability.  Through strong consultation processes College 
will identify and implement training programs that enable individuals to fulfil their VET aspirations 
and add to the skills base of the region. 

Priorities: 

o Consult widely and conduct research into industry and community needs to ensure the 
provision of training services that build more skilled communities. 

o Develop long term community training plans that ensure the provision of training and 
skills development that enhance the capacity of regional communities to plan and 
manage their future. 

o Support the implementation of the State Sustainability Strategy and the provision of 
integrated government services to regional communities. 

o Identify and develop innovative and flexible options for delivery and assessment to 
meet the needs of clients in remote and isolated communities. 

o Identify innovative ways to ensure suitable delivery and assessment facilities are 
available in regional and remote areas. 

o Look for opportunities to incorporate the principles of sustainability into training delivery 
and where possible provide opportunities for nationally recognised outcomes for clients 
in sustainability principles or practice. 

 
SD 4 PARTNER WITH INDIGENOUS PEOPLE IN EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

The College is committed to providing culturally appropriate training to improve the standard of 
living and quality of life for Australian Indigenous peoples through empowerment with knowledge 
and skills to enable self-determination. The College seeks to be recognised as a best practice 
provider of Indigenous training and will work with Australian Indigenous peoples to build a learning 
environment that achieves relevant outcomes and provides life long learning opportunities. 

Priorities: 
o Consult and partner with Indigenous communities to ensure the provision of culturally 

appropriate training services that builds more skilled communities and enhances social 
and economic outcomes. 

o Participation by Indigenous people and their success in vocational education and 
training is maintained and improved through the creation of learning pathways. 

o Develop and implement strategies to increase participation by Indigenous peoples in 
the higher level qualifications of the AQF. 

o Increase participation in and successful outcomes in employment based training for 
Indigenous people. 
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SD5 EXCELLENCE IN SUPPORT SERVICES 

Excellence in learning and assessment is underpinned by excellence in business practices and 
client services.  Central West TAFE will optimise the quality and opportunities of its delivery and 
assessment services through effective and efficient provision of corporate and client support 
services. 

Priorities: 
o Foster a service culture at all levels of the organisation ensuring the provision of high 

quality support to both internal and external clients. 
o Continuous improvement and streamlining of administrative processes that allow staff 

to focus on servicing client needs. 
o Continue to improve the types of support services provided to students. 
o Improve the image of Central West TAFE as a provider of a diverse range of industry 

relevant training. 
o Develop and maintain sustainable organisational systems and processes that ensure 

organisational compliance requirements are met and that staff have the resources they 
require to deliver high quality products and services. 

SD6 ACHIEVING PROFESSIONALISM IN VET 

Through a teams based organisational culture the College seeks to further develop its capacity to 
respond to the challenges of the changing VET market through the development of a flexible, 
skilled workforce and an effective working environment that encourages innovation and excellence. 
The College will build on its strengths of organisational culture, commitment and professionalism to 
continue to be recognised as the preferred provider of quality vocational education and training in 
the region. 

Priorities: 

o Recruit and retain quality staff through employing practices which characterise the 
College as an employer of choice across the region and within the VET sector. 

o Develop a workforce that has the diverse range of transferable skills and knowledge 
required to meet existing and future client needs and the requirements of the changing 
VET sector. 

o Research, design, implement and continuously improve work practices and structures 
to make more effective use of staff resources in meeting organisational objectives.  

o Create an environment of high performance that empowers staff to be innovative and 
responsive to client needs and expectations. 

o Build the diversity of the workforce to ensure the needs of clients from diverse 
backgrounds are met. 

  
 
College Structure 
A team based organisational structure and a culture which encourages staff to develop flexible and 
innovative approaches to meeting client needs has provided Central West TAFE with the ability to 
continually respond to the changing needs of the region. Through the provision of high quality 
training delivery and assessment services attuned to the needs of industry, client focussed support 
services and a range of first class facilities and equipment the College assists individuals, industry 
and the community to pursue their skills development and lifelong learning goals. 

During 2005 and 2006 the College structure was refined to better reflect the changing needs of the 
VET environment and the Central West region and to enable the continuation of high quality 
support services throughout the implementation of whole of government Shared Services 
requirements.  Implementation of the revised structure will continue throughout 2007.  
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The College is structured around three directorates that provide organisational services and 
support. These are: 
 
Academic and Training Services 
Responsible for the development and delivery of a range of training and assessment programs that 
meet the needs of diverse client groups. The area provides educational leadership and a broad 
range of academic support services to facilitate participation by clients in relevant, quality 
vocational education and training. 
 
Organisational Effectiveness 
Responsible for engaging and supporting clients, providing organisational development through a 
range of strategic planning and performance management services and developing the 
organisation's learning culture. 
 
Corporate Services 
Responsible for developing and implementing systems and processes that support the business 
and administrative environment of the College and ensuring the organisation fulfils its statutory 
requirements. 
 
The following graphic represents the interconnectedness of the College’s organisational structure, 
with teams working in related ways to service the needs of clients: 
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College Governing Council 
 

The Governing Council of Central West TAFE comprises a Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson, 
members appointed by the Minister as representatives of local industry, the community, and the 
Managing Director of the College.  
 
Governing Council members in 2006 were: 
 
Mr Barry Mitchell (Chairperson)   # Mrs Rae Peel (Deputy Chairperson) 
Mitchell and Brown Communications   St John of God Hospital, Geraldton  
Industry Representative    Industry Representative 
 
Mr Terry Brennan     Mr Darren Lee 
Geraldton Regional Aboriginal Medical Service Market Creations 
Industry Representative    Industry Representative 
 
*Ms Kate McConkey     Dr Nancy Rees 
Deputy Principal, Holland Street School  Curtin University of Technology 
Industry and Community Representative  Community Representative 
 
Debbie O'Toole     Ms Di Morrison  
Electoral Officer       Proprietor Wahroonga Station 
Community Representative    Industry Representative (Carnarvon) 
 
Marita Keenan      Ms Robyn Parsons  
Community Representative (Exmouth)  Community Representative (Dongara) 
        
Mr Bob Floky      Mr Bert Beevers 
Central West TAFE     Central West TAFE 
Staff Representative     Managing Director    
     
# resigned 2006 
* completed term of appointment July 2006 
 

THE YEAR IN REVIEW 
Managing Director’s Report - Shaping Vocational Education and Training 
Programs for a Dynamic Environment 
2006 was a year of shaping—shaping the organisation to respond more efficiently and effectively 
to individual, community and industry needs, shaping the organisation’s systems to better support 
the training delivery requirements of internal and external clients, shaping College infrastructure to 
better accommodate increased demand for apprenticeship and traineeship delivery, shaping 
professional development activities to enhance academic excellence and shaping programs to 
respond to increased demand for workplace, flexible, blended and online delivery.  

The College formalised its new structure and established teams that better reflected regional 
requirements and ensured a more responsive and timely approach to industry and community 
training needs. The Training Support Services was established and training commenced to up skill 
all staff within this section to respond to the numerous demands of student administration. The 
College formalised the Indigenous Training Services section to ensure a focused and coordinated 
approach to Indigenous training delivery, and development and management of externally funding 
projects. The Business Development Unit was established and two business development officers 
appointed to identify, develop and deliver training in partnership with academic areas.  

This shaping of Central West TAFE took place within a complex vocational education and training 
environment, an environment focused on industry driven, employer and individual centred 
vocational education and training. An environment that demands economically and socially 
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empowered communities and skilled Indigenous Australians. An environment which is currently 
enjoying a major resources boom and high employment but where critical skills shortages, 
declining delivery in traditional markets and an increase in the school leaving age have challenged 
Central West TAFE to assess the way it does its business, to develop new and innovative training 
delivery methodology and investigate opportunities for growth and emergence into new and niche 
industries. 

2006 was a year of strengthening partnerships with external stakeholders. The critical nature of 
regional skill shortages, in particular, prompted new and stronger links with key industry players 
and the development of a number of innovative programs focused on increasing employment 
opportunities for clients in the mining sector. The College played a major role in working with 
industry to address the shortage of skilled labour in the region, in growing employment based 
training opportunities through apprenticeships and traineeships and providing industry identified 
training to Indigenous clients aimed at increasing Indigenous employment in the resources sector. 

The College’s working relationship with the Mid West District Education Office and increasing 
partnerships with the schools in the region, in line with the implementation and monitoring of the 
District Education and Training Plan, has seen development of new TAFELinks programs, better 
auspicing arrangements, increased numbers of school based trainees and the implementation of 
the School Apprenticeship Link (SAL) program in the Construction, Metals and Automotive trades 
areas. In 2007 the School Apprenticeship Link program will be expanded to include commercial 
cookery and personal services, a clear indication that industry is supportive of this innovative 
program and cognisant of the benefits that it can provide to regional Western Australia.   

The College continued to play a key role in the Geraldton University Centre and to support the 
development and implementation of a number of university qualifications including the Bachelor of 
Science (Seafood Science), Bachelor of Arts (Contemporary Art) and the Bachelor of Science 
(Nursing). This partnership continues to realise increased and improved education and training 
career pathways for people throughout the region. 

The College also continued to support the holistic, alternative education and training program 
delivered at the Midwest Football Academy in partnership with Geraldton Senior College, Clontarf 
Foundation and the Department of Education and Training. The College has allocated training 
delivery hours and staff to develop and deliver a fantastic program which has not only increased 
the self esteem of the young Indigenous males at the Football Academy but re-engaged them with 
education and training and provided them with the opportunity to develop their potential in a 
nurturing and culturally appropriate environment. Towards the end of 2006 this partnership was 
expanded to include a mining company, a resource industry service company and the Department 
of Indigenous Affairs. Through the provision of substantial funding from the partnering 
organisations, particularly the private companies, nine former Football Academy students were put 
through an intensive, workplace-based machine operators program. So far, seven of the 
participants have gained full time employment in the industry. The Midwest Football Academy 
continues to be a flagship program for the engagement of at risk students and the College is proud 
to continue its integral role in its development.  

The marine and aquaculture industries together with Mid West Development Commission, 
Geraldton City Council, Department of Fisheries, Department of Education and Training and 
Geraldton Fisherman’s Cooperative and the College proudly opened the doors of the Batavia 
Coast Maritime Institute in April 2006 after ten years of planning and development. This iconic 
Institute, located at Separation Point in Geraldton, is now well positioned to become a world class, 
best practice aquaculture and marine research and training facility focusing on post harvest grow 
out technologies; crustacean and finfish processing; value adding through seafood processing 
technology, quality assurance, marketing and business planning; maritime training in competency 
standards and training packages; and industry related research and development. It is anticipated 
that the current partnerships will grow and flourish with the commissioning of this facility and that 
the opportunities that are available to the College will put Geraldton front and centre of marine and 
aquaculture research, development, education and training in Western Australia. 

Internally the College focused on improving its planning and business development processes; 
renewing its commitment to working within a culture of service; and further ensuring its 
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organisational structure and the teams that support it were reflective of the College’s vision and 
strategic priorities. In addition, the College conducted a series of training needs analyses in efforts 
to identify, develop and deliver a range of training products that would address current skill 
shortages in the Central West region; increase the scope and mode of delivery of qualifications 
across the Central West region; provide industry driven and approved training in a timely manner; 
increase the range of opportunities for communities to access training outside regional centres and 
formalise partnerships with industry to ensure on-going support as well as identification, 
development and implementation of additional training products.  

In 2006 the College continued to support lecturers’ skill development in a range of delivery 
methodologies. A series of skills development activities and a focused three day professional 
enhancement program enabled lecturers to participate in training across a diverse range of 
teaching and learning areas. These ranged from managing student behaviour to facilitating online 
learning using tools such as the Eluminate web conferencing facility. Outcomes included 
increasing skills and improving confidence of lecturing staff to support learners using a range of 
delivery methods and more satisfied students evident by an increase in student retention and 
successful completion. Central West TAFE lecturers continue to be sought after to share their 
approaches and best practice in a range of regional and state forums. 

The success of the College is also reflected in the achievement of its staff and students with a 
number being recognised during 2006. I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate the 
following staff:  
 

Internal Staff Quality Award Winners 

Lecturing Excellence Awards  
Craig Koltasz - For innovative use of technology and responsiveness to industry needs across 
several industry areas and training packages. 
Michelle Edwards - For a high standard of delivery, assessment practices and industry liaison. 

Client Service Awards 

Donna Chesson - In recognition of satisfying clients’ needs over and above expectations. 

Murray Smith - For proactively responding to clients’ needs and expectations, continuously 
striving for excellence. 

Leadership Award 
Sharon Jupp and Kelly Edwards - For commitment to the development and implementation of 
Certificate IV in Training and Assessment within the College and across the wider VET sector. 

High Performing Team Award 
Batavia Coast Maritime Institute Project Team - For the effective contribution to the strategic 
direction and operational effectiveness of Central West TAFE in teaching and non-teaching 
areas. 

 
External Awards 

WA Training Excellence Awards Vocational Student of the Year Award 
Johanna Swoboda, Diploma of Aquaculture student 

WA Training Excellence Awards VET in Schools Aboriginal and Torres Straight Islander 
Student of the Year Award 

Kendall Roe, Certificate II in Business student 

WA Training Excellence Awards Trainer of the Year Award 
Dr. Michael Cheah, Aquaculture Lecturer 

High Commendation Premiers Teacher Award 
Craig Koltasz, Marine & Aquaculture Lecturer 

WAFIC Seafood Training Industry Award 
Batavia Coast Maritime Institute 
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Short listed for WA Inventor of the Year  
Batavia Coast Maritime Institute for its Perishable Export Simulator 

 
 
Looking to the future the major challenges and priorities for the College during 2007 will include: 

o Working in partnership with the education sector and universities in the ongoing 
development of the Geraldton Education Precinct. 

o Working with industry to develop and implement innovative and effective training solutions 
to address skill shortages in the region and to increase employment based training. 

o The development of a long term holistic Workforce Management Plan for the College. 

o Continuing contribution to state and national training priorities including addressing the 
skills shortages at trade and para-professional levels, 15 – 19 year old initiatives, options 
for people with a disability and increasing participation and successful outcomes for 
indigenous people in higher AQF levels. 

Finally I would like to thank all College staff, clients, industry and professional groups who 
contributed to a successful year in 2006. I would also like to acknowledge the contribution of the 
College Governing Council to the strategic direction of the College.  In 2007, I look forward to 
further enhancing relationships with stakeholders to ensure the best possible education and 
training opportunities for residents and enterprises in the Central West region. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Bert Beevers 
Managing Director 
Central West TAFE 
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2006 At a Glance 
 
2006 Client Satisfaction Indicators  
 
Note: A full report of College Performance Indicators and Financial Statements are provided later in this report.  The following are a brief 
summary of these. 

 
Overall Student Satisfaction 
 

Central West TAFE WA Average 

89% 86% 

 
 
2006 Training Delivery Indicators 
 
Achievement of Training Delivery Profile (publicly funded delivery), counted as Student Curriculum 
Hours (SCH) 
 

Planned Actual % Achieved 

889,049 874,016* 98.3%* 

 
* In 2006 the College delivered an actual total of 883,981 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) against a planned total of 889,049 SCH, that 
is, 99.4%. However, of the actual SCH a total of 9,965 SCH were achieved in industry groups where a “hard ceiling” exists. Delivery of 
SCH above the hard ceiling is not recognised by the Department of Education and Training as achieved SCH against the planned 
delivery target 
 
 
 
Non-Profile, counted as Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) and expressed as a percentage of total 
College delivery 

 

Non-Profile SCH 114,344 

% of Total College SCH 11.57% 

 
Non-Profile training activity incorporates Fee for Service and Adult and Community Education courses, Tendered Industry Specific 
programs, Special Projects (State/ANTA Funded), Other Commonwealth Non-ANTA Activities, VET in Schools, Priority Skills 
Enhancement programs and other related commercial training delivery activities. 
 
 
Cost Indicator 
 
This indicator measures the average cost of delivery per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) for all 
delivery including Profile and Non-Profile activity. 
 

Cost per SCH $21.06 
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE STRATEGIC PLANNING FRAMEWORK 
Better Planning:  Better Services – A Strategic Planning Framework for the Western Australian 
Public Sector is a concise statement of the Western Australian Government’s intentions to improve 
the quality of life for all Western Australians.  The framework is built around five strategic goals that 
contribute to the achievement of the Government’s vision.  This section describes Central West 
TAFE’s contribution to the five strategic goals during 2006. 

 

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES 
Goal One of Better Planning: Better Services is aimed at enhancing the quality of life and wellbeing 
of all people throughout Western Australia.  Central West TAFE has a significant role to play in 
achieving this outcome through encouraging lifelong learning, contributing to positive outcomes for 
people with disabilities, providing training which empowers Indigenous Australians and providing 
services which ensure equal access for all sectors of the local community.  A number of the 
College’s activities contribute directly to this goal with further information provided in the Report on 
Operations section of this report.  The following provides details of the College’s achieved 
outcomes for some specific community groups during 2006 
 
Disability Service Plan Outcomes 
People with a disability in the Central West region have limited opportunities to access training and 
employment, evidenced by their participation rates in both vocational education and training and 
the workforce.  There is a significant community need for people with a disability to be gainfully 
engaged in useful and rewarding activities.  Governments, the community and, increasingly, 
industry themselves are recognising the value in utilising the talents and abilities of all members of 
the community. The diverse contributions that can be made by all individuals, including individuals 
with a disability, benefit industry and enterprises and contribute to stronger communities.  

Whilst all staff are responsible for providing a learning program and environment that facilitates 
participation for all students Central West TAFE also employs a Disability Liaison Officer who 
provides a point of contact for students and staff and advises staff on appropriate support 
strategies to assist students with disabilities.   

The College has an ongoing Disability Services Plan which includes strategies and actions to 
increase the participation of people with a disability in vocational education and training.  This plan 
will be reviewed and significantly updated in 2007 to meet the guidelines for Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plans provided by the Disability Services Commission. During the year the College 
continued to implement strategies identified within its current Disability Services Plan.    

In 2006 the College experienced an increase in the number of students indicating they had a 
disability and requesting support for participation in their learning programs. To assist staff develop 
necessary skills to work with and enhance the learning experiences of people with disabilities 
professional development programs were provided including Disability Awareness sessions; “hot 
topics” (lunch time forums) highlighting mental health issues; and more general Working with 
Diversity sessions. Increasing levels of support are being provided to students through the 
provision of mentors and in-class assistance. Whilst this support has proved effective in 
maintaining students’ participation in programs it has placed increasing pressure on the resources 
available to support students with learning needs. A number of students requesting or requiring 
support for participation are young “at risk” students from a variety of backgrounds, many of whom 
do not fit the traditional definition of person with a disability, but who have learning and behavioural 
difficulties that potentially impact on their participation and successful completion of programs. The 
College anticipates that the number of students requiring this type of support will increase as the 
second stage of the increase in mandatory schooling age comes into effect in 2008. 
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During 2006 links with disability agencies (Geraldton Personnel Inc, Disability Services 
Commission, Commonwealth Rehabilitation Services, Midwest Mental Health) in the region were 
maintained and further developed and to encourage prospective students to participate in 
mainstream TAFE programs.  

Students participated in mainstream offering including the Certificate of General Education for 
Adults, Certificate of Gaining Access to Training and Employment, Information Technology with the 
support of mentors assisting students to adjust from the school system into the vocational training 
sector with support and structured learning outcomes.  The College also extensively uses 
technology (JAWS, mimio boards, laptops, trackballs, and ergonomic chairs) to provide students 
with the best support to reach a successful outcome in their course of study. 

Provision of targeted programs to encourage people with a disability to enter the VET environment 
during 2006 included continuation of Holland Street School TAFE Link program to break down 
barriers and form trust with the students to enable them to participate in mainstream courses.   

Looking forward to 2007 in late 2006 the College was successful in attracting funding to develop a 
strategy that (a) reflects the training needs of people with disabilities, (b) identifies training 
pathways for people with disabilities (c) identifies the number and type of training options available 
to support the needs of people with disabilities; (d) determines the professional development 
requirements of staff working with people with disabilities and the College training plan to support 
this requirement; (e) identifies policies, procedures and processes that adequately reflect the 
College’s ability to support the needs of people with disabilities and guide the organisation in the 
development and delivery of quality training products for this client group; (f) formalises the roles 
and responsibilities of partnering organisations and the level of support being provided by all 
parties to support identified training programs and (g) College training plans focusing specifically 
on options for people with disabilities. The project will commence in March 2007. 
 
 
Cultural and Language Services Outcomes 
The College has a strong commitment to access and equity principles.  This commitment is 
reflected in key organisational documents such as the strategic plan, customer service 
commitment, staff equity and diversity plan, student charter and staff code of practice.   

Initiatives undertaken during 2006 with regards to this outcome include ongoing professional 
development programs aimed at increasing staff skills in working with clients from culturally diverse 
backgrounds. A Workplace English Language and Literacy program was provided through the 
Carnarvon Growers Association for Vietnamese growers in Carnarvon.  

The College did not provide any interpreting or translating services to clients throughout 2006.   
However, the College does have a process in place whereby students are encouraged to discuss 
their specific needs with lecturers during enrolment and strategies are put in place to ensure 
access to services as required. 

Further information on strategies implemented to support diversity with regard to students and staff 
is provided in the Report of Operations section of this document. 
 
 
Youth Outcomes 
Supporting young people by increasing opportunities to participate in Vocational Education and 
Training is a key priority for Central West TAFE.  2006 saw the introduction of the first stage of the 
increase in school leaving age, with young people now needed to stay engaged in school, training 
or employment until the end of the year in which they turn 16 years. The increase in school leaving 
age has meant greater interaction between the College and schools to identify and implement 
programs to effectively engage young people in education and training. This has proved 
challenging particularly in regional and remote locations where few options exist for young people 
beyond the traditional Year 10. 
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The College has traditionally provided a number of services to youth through VET in Schools 
Programs, which include TAFE-Link programs provided by the College where students complete 
nationally recognised units of competence; auspiced programs delivered by the schools and quality 
assured by the College; School Based Traineeships; and School Apprentice Link (SAL) programs 

Delivery is across a range of industry areas including Information Technology, Automotive, 
Aquaculture, Business, Building and Construction, Beauty Therapy, Metals, Hospitality, Cooking 
and Retail.  The participating schools in 2006 were: 

o Meekatharra District High School 
o Mullewa District High School 
o Exmouth District High School 
o Carnarvon Senior High School 
o Dongara Senior High School 
o Geraldton Secondary College 
o Kalbarri District High School 
o Holland Street School 
o Cue Primary School (for secondary students in Cue) 
o Mt Magnet District High School 
o Carnamah District High School 
o Burringurrah Remote Community School 
o Christian Brothers Agricultural College Tardun (fee for service) 
o Nagle Catholic College (fee for service) 
o Strathalbyn Christian College (fee for service) 

During 2006 the College continued to build upon this traditional role and sought new ways to 
engage students in VET whilst still participating in school.  One such program introduced in 2006 
was a school apprenticeship link (SAL) in the construction, metals and automotive program areas.  
The SAL program is a state wide initiative aimed at providing students with the opportunity of 
gaining greater awareness of the industry of their choice whilst still enrolled at school.  Students 
participate in school, TAFE and work placement with various employers over the term of the 
program.  A positive outcome is that an employer will commit to taking the student on as an 
apprentice at any stage of the program should all parties be satisfied with the progress of the 
student.  This program will be expanded in 2007 to include commercial cookery and personal 
services.  

The relationship between the College and the Mid West District Education Office was further built 
upon during 2006 with joint initiatives including: 

o The implementation and further development of the District Education and Training Plan, 
identifying opportunities for the development of innovative education and training services 
to engage youth, particularly those “at risk”, within the Central West region.   

o Ongoing development of the Education and Training Precinct in Geraldton. Funding was 
provided in 2006 (construction to commence in April 2007) to extend delivery facilities in the 
key trades areas of Metals; Building and Construction; and Cooking at the College to 
increase capacity for participation by secondary students in VET programs. 

The College continues to provide vocational education and training options to young Indigenous 
males enrolled in Geraldton Senior College and attending the Mid West Football Academy. This 
program has been extremely successful and the partnership between the College, Geraldton 
Senior College and Mid West Football Academy has ensured that the projects undertaken in a 
holistic manner at the Academy have had far reaching positive results for the students participating 
in the program.  Due to the enormous success of the program and the desire of the Clontarf 
Foundation to expand this approach across the two remaining Academies as well as apply the 
practices to a number of other mediums, the College has agreed to continue its involvement in the 
Academy in 2007.  In 2006 a similar Netball Academy program was introduced for Indigenous girls 
at Geraldton Senior College. The College provided VET delivery for girls engaged in this program 
in the area of commercial cooking. 

Other initiatives for youth included the delivery of the Gaining Access to Training and Education 
course aimed at reengaging youth disenfranchised with traditional school based approaches to 
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education and training at Geraldton and Carnarvon.  Utilising the versatility of the Gaining Access 
to Training and Education course the College initiated, developed and delivered Preparing Young 
People for Parenting in partnership with Geraldton Regional Medical Services aimed at reengaging 
young pregnant women into the education sector. 

Central West TAFE also continued to service a large number of Certificate I in Workplace 
Readiness school based trainees and other school based trainees. 

 

THE ECONOMY 
This goal is related to the development of a strong economy that delivers more jobs, more 
opportunities and greater wealth to Western Australians.  It includes financial management, 
purchasing, facilities, employment opportunities and research and development.  As one of the 
largest employers in the Central West region the College has a significant impact on the economy 
of the Central West.  Further information regarding the College’s finances can be found in the 
financial statements in the final section of this report.  The following provides an overview of major 
capital projects undertaken during 2006, compliance with purchasing requirements and details of 
College fees and charges. 
 
Capital Projects & Minor Works 
The College’s facilities section provides the College with a works program that supports the 
delivery of the College’s training priorities.  

In 2006 the main building project undertaken was assisting with the construction of the Batavia 
Coast Maritime Institute.  The Institute was completed on 6th June 2006 at a cost of approximately 
$11.5 million dollars. The Colleges’ role was to facilitate the construction of the Institute and ensure 
that any defects associated with the centre were completed. The project has had some initial 
teething problems however the College is confident that a world class maritime centre will be the 
outcome of the project.   

A further project that the College had involvement with during 2006 was the Educational Precinct 
Project.  Planning for this project commenced in 2006 and the College has been working in close 
collaboration with the architects in order to accommodate additional numbers of high school 
students on the Fitzgerald Street site. The College has had considerable input in the prioritisation 
and design for the project. The project is due to go out to tender in March 2007 and has an 
estimated cost of $3.22 million.  The project involves capacity building for the metals and 
construction trades as well as the building of a new skills kitchen.  

Other minor projects undertaken include: 
 

Project 
 

Cost of Project 

Refurbishment of Carnarvon Campus – delivery area $ 55,000 

Upgrading of Metals Power supply – P Block $ 50,000 

General Air conditioning works and replacement $ 45,000 

Refurbishment of Residential (2 units) $ 43,287 

Skills Area Workshop upgrade  $ 12,500 

Equipment Upgrades         $ 590,000 

 
Purchasing Services 
During 2006 the College continued its commitment to meeting the requirements of State Supply 
Commission Policies and Buy Local Policies for government procurement through its conscientious 
approach to maximising opportunities for small, local and regional businesses in the Mid West and 
Gascoyne regions.  The Regional Buying Centre in Geraldton and the College have been involved 
in developing regional common use arrangements through the provision of staff expertise, 
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knowledge and statistics.  In 2007 the College will continue the relationship with the Regional 
Buying Centre in an effort to capitalise on government procurement savings. 
 
For the 2005-2006 financial year, the College exceeded the State Supply Commission’s 
benchmark of 80% for the number of local purchases as well as the value of purchases as 
indicated in the table below.  
 

Average percentage of Buy Local spend 
 across all regions calculated from the: 

Number of purchases 
and contracts awarded 

Value of purchases and 
contracts awarded 

Gascoyne Region 90.9% 92.7% 

Mid West Region 90.3% 92.7% 

 

THE ENVIRONMENT 
This goal aims to ensure that Western Australia has an environment in which resources are 
managed, developed and used in a sustainable manner and where biological diversity is preserved 
and habitats are protected.  The College contributes to this goal through providing training which 
encompasses sustainability considerations and through implementing energy saving initiatives. 
 
Energy Smart Government Policy 
In accordance with the Energy Smart Government policy Central West TAFE has committed to 
achieve a 12% reduction in non-transport related energy use by 2006/07.  Central West TAFE 
reached its 10.9% target for the 2005/2006 reporting period and received an award from the 
Sustainable Energy Development Office. 
 

Energy Smart Government 
program 

Baseline 
Data 

2005/2006 
Actual 

Variation 
% 

Energy Consumption (GJ) 6,632 5,909 10.9% 

Energy Cost ($) 227,191 199,674  

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
(tonnes of CO2) 

1,598 1,333  

Performance indicators 
♦ MJ/sqm 
♦ MJ/FTE 

 
365 

2,998 

 
317 

2,601 
 

 
Since the implementation of the “Energy Smart Project” the College has undertaken a number of 
initiatives to reduce energy consumption. During 2005/2006 the following energy saving initiatives 
were implemented: 

o Conducted an energy audit 
o Installed low energy use multi functional devices to replace existing high energy use 

copiers and printers  
o Replaced approximately 90 SRT Monitors with LCD screens  
o Using automatically controlled hot water urns in staff rooms 
o Installed triphosphorous tubes at the Carnarvon campus  
o Participated in Synergy Peak Demand Saver Program 
o Formed an Environmental Management Committee.  
o Installing the following energy savings devices in the new Batavia Coast Maritime Institute:  

⇒ Low energy use multifunctional devices 
⇒ Automatically controlled hot water urns in staff and student rooms 
⇒ Two Hour Timer switches on all HVAC plants 
⇒ Automatic timers on all ground lights  
⇒ Triphosphorous tubes in all internal lighting.  
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THE REGIONS 
The Western Australian Government’s goal is to ensure that regional Western Australia is strong 
and vibrant.  Strategic outcomes which the College has a significant role in achieving include 
planning in partnership for a sustainable future, effective government service delivery to regions 
that is responsive to the needs of diverse communities, more skilled regional communities, lifelong 
learning in the regions and enhanced quality of regional lifestyles. 
 
Regional Development Policy 
The College’s current strategic plan Partnerships with the Region: building capacity through 
education and training recognises the vital role the College has to play as a large government 
agency servicing the Mid West, Gascoyne and Murchison regions of Western Australia in 
enhancing the lives of the citizens and communities of the region.  The College makes a significant 
contribution to the region’s economy as a large employer and through our role in developing the 
skills of the workforce.  We carry considerable responsibility for developing the life long learning 
skills that are essential for people to participate effectively in their communities.   

TAFE staff work in partnership with local industry, district high schools, service providers, the 
Telecentre Network, and local Indigenous organisations to provide relevant high quality training 
and assessment services to remote communities within the Mid West and Gascoyne regions.  
Programs during 2006 included: 

o Successful delivery of the Certificate IV in Laboratory Operations in Dongara in response to 
identified skill shortages in the region. 

o Obtained funding from the Department of Education and Training to set up a ‘mobile trailer’ 
with the necessary tools and equipment to support regional and remote delivery of Trades 
skills throughout the Mid West. The addition of a computerised plasma profile cutter to the 
mobile trailer will allow the College to introduce computerised manufacturing across the 
region. 

o Delivery of Certificate I in Industrial Skills in a number of rural and isolated locations 
resulting in a number of participants either gaining full time employment or re-engaging in 
full time training. 

o In efforts to provide workplace tourism training the College prepared flexible delivery 
resources to support open learning in tourism and hospitality across the regions. 

o Construction and Rural Industries delivered an innovative program focused on assessing 
the current competencies of local government workers in the workplace. This initiative 
targeted outside workers at the Greenough, Geraldton and Carnarvon shires and will be 
offered to other regional shires in 2007. These assessments resulted in participants gaining 
Rural Operations qualifications. 

o Utilising the Certificate II in Visual Art and Contemporary Craft students at Carnarvon 
campus created an Art trailer that can be used to transport art supplies across the region as 
well as promote the College, its art programs and the students whose work appears on the 
trailer. 

o In partnership with the Wiluna Shire, the College delivered the Certificate III in Visual Art 
and Contemporary Craft with a pleasing number of these students achieving competence at 
the Certificate III level. The course has allowed participants the opportunity to discover their 
artistic talents and enjoy a high level of economic return on their paintings. 

o Delivery of the Certificate I in Automotive at Wiluna with ten students successfully 
completing the course. 

o Delivery of the Certificate II in Metalliferous Mining in partnership with local industry groups 
in the region. 

o Facilitation of a two day workshop at Northampton focusing on community aquaculture 
projects and the development of networks to support Indigenous aquaculture ventures. 

Further details of the College’s regional and remote activities are provided in the Report on 
Operations section of this report. 
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GOVERNANCE 
Central West TAFE aims to achieve the Government’s goal of operating in an open, effective and 
efficient manner.  The College has an organisational structure in place which facilitates both staff 
and community involvement in decision making and allows for open communication to all 
stakeholders.  During 2006 the College continued to achieve outcomes against its strategic plan 
which is in alignment with the State Strategic Planning Framework.  The following information 
provides details of the College’s governance practices.  Further information may also be found in 
the Report on Operations section of this report. 

 
Evaluations 
Central West TAFE is characterised by its commitment to quality and continuous improvement 
processes.  As such the College continually seeks feedback from its clients which is utilised to 
evaluate and improve the provision of services.  The following evaluations were conducted in 2006: 

o The College participated in the state Student Satisfaction Survey and the national Student 
Outcomes Survey with key results reported in the Key Performance Indicators of this report.  
Additionally, information from these surveys was presented to senior staff and analysed for 
key areas of excellence and areas for improvement. 

o Client Feedback Forms are available throughout the College and enable clients or staff to 
provide feedback on any aspect of the College’s activity.  The forms were processed 
through the Quality subsection and forwarded to the relevant Directorate for response.  The 
Manager Quality and Planning regularly provided an aggregation of all data and responses 
to Executive along with a report highlighting any systemic issues identified. 

o The College has a process to collect feedback from a selection of students through the 
deployment of a Unit Evaluation Questionnaire.  The questionnaire collects information on 
student satisfaction with classroom management and teaching, curricula, resources and 
equipment and the learning environment.  An analysis was undertaken by the Quality 
subsection and forwarded to the appropriate Academic Director for communication to staff 
and where appropriate, development of improvement strategies. 

 
Freedom of Information 
A range of publications that provide information to staff and the community are available from the 
Central West TAFE and are widely distributed to stakeholders and throughout the community. The 
College provides information regarding its services and available documentation through its 
Freedom of Information Statement and on the College website. Any member of the public wishing 
to access material under the Freedom of Information Act can contact: 

The Freedom of Information Coordinator 
Central West TAFE 
PMB 103 
GERALDTON WA 6531 
Telephone: 08 9956 2747 

During the reporting period the College did not receive any applications for information under the 
Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Record Keeping Plan 

Central West TAFE uses TRIM Captura, (Tower Records Information Management) as their 
records software management program for recordkeeping to comply with sections 12 and 61 of 
the State Records Act 2000 in which the State Records Commission requires each government 
agency to have an approved recordkeeping plan.  The Colleges plan was approved in 2005 and 
sets out compliance issues regarding proper and adequate records, policies and procedures, 
language control, preservation, retention and disposal, compliance and outsourced functions.  
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The following provides key activities and outcomes achieved at Central West TAFE against the 
four key areas:  

1. The efficiency and effectiveness of the agency’s recordkeeping systems is evaluated not less 
than once every five years. 
The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping system at Central West TAFE was 
reviewed and evaluated during development of the records section operational plan 2006.   

During 2006 an external base level audit was carried out by the Department of Education and 
Training Internal Assurance Directorate, which revealed areas for improvement in a number of 
sections of the College.  A management plan was developed to ensure appropriate corrective 
actions were undertaken, including: 

o Improving across College usage of records system through  an integrated audit and 
compliance approach and continued training 

o Strengthening of records management plan and strategy. 

Additionally, minor reviews were conducted on a monthly basis by the Senior Records Officer 
and records staff to ensure the ongoing effectiveness and improvement of the system during 
2006. 

 
2. The agency conducts a recordkeeping training program 

An intensive training program was carried out during 2006 which included records awareness 
sessions and induction training being held on a regular basis. During 2006 more than 180 staff 
members attended either the induction or records awareness training.  Feedback from these 
sessions was utilised to evaluate the effectiveness of the training and to identify opportunities 
for improvement.  

Training was presented by the Senior Records Officer and included: 
o Records management 
o File management 
o Mail management 

Participants received a copy of information delivered at the training session and were able to 
access this information via the records page on the College intranet.  Training was delivered to 
all levels of staff including the Managing Director, Directors, Lecturers and Non Academic staff.  
Training was delivered at Geraldton, Carnarvon and Exmouth campuses which resulted in an 
overall improvement in the uptake and correct usage of the records system. 

 
3. The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training program is reviewed from time to 

time 

A review of the training program was conducted on a six monthly basis taking into account 
written and verbal feedback from staff.  It was also reviewed to ensure information remained up 
to date and relevant.   

 
4. The agency’s induction program addresses employees’ roles and responsibilities in regard to 

their compliance with the agency’s recordkeeping plan 

The induction program not only addressed employee’s roles and responsibilities with regards to 
compliance, it also addressed other issues such as: correct mail management, file 
management and overall records management.  The content of the records management 
presentations includes the following key issues with regards to records management within the 
College: 

o What is records management and its importance 
o Responsibility for recordkeeping 
o Differences between documents and records 
o Value of a records, records as assets 
o Who, what where and why of recordkeeping 
o Classifying and archiving 
o Legal requirements 
o Central West TAFE recordkeeping plan 
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o Proper and adequate records 
o Policies and procedures 
o Language control 
o Preservation 
o Retention and disposal 
o Outsourced functions 
o Who to contact for assistance in records. 

 
 
Advertising and Sponsorship 
During 2006 the College produced the following major publications aimed at providing quality 
information to students: 

o 2006 Fact Pack and Student Diary 
 
Throughout 2006 Central West TAFE undertook or supported the following promotional activities: 

o International Women’s Day Celebration (Geraldton) - March 
o Geraldton Awards Night  – April 
o Carnarvon Awards Night - May 
o Exmouth Awards Night – May 
o Whale Shark Festival (Exmouth) - May 
o Uni Week (Geraldton) - May 
o NAIDOC Activities (Geraldton) – July 
o Opening of the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute – July 
o Opening of the refurbished Exmouth Campus facility - August 
o College Open Day (Geraldton) – August 
o Mingenew Expo – September 
o Lunch for Leukaemia (Carnarvon) – September 
o Adult Learner’s Week (Carnarvon & Geraldton) - September 
o Geraldton town display at the Royal Show - September 
o New Opportunities for Women Celebration (Geraldton) – October 
o New Opportunities for Women Celebration (Carnarvon) – November 
o College Open Day (Carnarvon) - November 
o Motivational speakers for specific classes 
o Attendance at the 2006 Premiers Teachers Awards – Craig Koltasz (Lecturer in Marine & 

Aquaculture) receiving a high commendation 
o Attendance at the WA Training Excellence Awards – Dr Michael Cheah announced as the 

2006 Vocational Education & Training Trainer & Johanna Swoboda announced as the WA 
Vocational Student of the Year. 

o Batavia Coast Maritime Institute – winner of the WA Seafood Industry Training Award. 
 
Sustainability  
As a training provider in a large regional area Central West TAFE has a strong history of providing 
training and support services that enhance the capacity of regional and remote communities.  
Central West TAFE sees the State’s commitment to sustainability and the triple bottom line 
approach as an opportunity to build its management and planning structures around these 
principles with a view to continuing the provision of high quality services to the Central West 
community. 
The College has developed a Sustainability Action Plan which is the foundation that is driving 
Central West TAFE to build its planning and strategic management framework around the 
principles of sustainability.   During 2006 Central West TAFE undertook a number of priority items 
included in its Sustainability Action Plan including: 

o The College’s Environmental Management Committee continued to examine initiatives 
including applying for energy and water grants and examining ways of minimising waste.   
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o The College undertook a water audit and a waste audit. These audits have given the 
College ideas on how to reduce the College’s water and waste usage.   

o Cleaning and gardening tenders include a management plan which incorporates 
sustainability mechanisms. 

o The College met its 10% energy saving target for 2006.   
o Staff cooperating in a number of car pooling initiatives with staff travelling together to 

regional locations to complete delivery of training and assessment in different industry 
areas. 

o The College continued work on its Workforce Management Plan including elements of 
workforce diversity and succession planning.  

o A Central West TAFE Equity & Diversity Policy statement was developed and 
implemented. 

o The College facilitated a two day workshop at Northampton focusing on community 
aquaculture projects and the development of networks to support Indigenous aquaculture 
ventures. 

o In partnership with Wila Gutharra Aboriginal Corporation the College received funding from 
the Department of Education and Training to develop and pilot an accredited course 
Developing Ongoing Independence in Training, aimed specifically at increasing the pre-
employability skills of CDEP participants, long-term unemployed and trainees in rural, 
regional and remote regions of Western Australia. Course materials were completed in 
2005 and submitted to the Training Accreditation Council in early 2006 for endorsement. 
The course was piloted with Wila Gutharra in second semester 2006. Twenty students 
enrolled in this program. 

o In 2005 the College applied for and was successful in attracting funding for the 
development of a sustainable model to support Indigenous participation at the higher levels 
of VET.  In support of this strategy in 2006 the College increased the number of designated 
places across key skill shortage areas. Indigenous Training Services continued to progress 
professional development activities with College staff in efforts to identify opportunities for 
sharing information and advising Indigenous students on potential pathways and 
programs. The Pathways framework formed the basis of Indigenous Training Services 
operational planning and has supported the coordination of a number of key across 
College initiatives. 

 
Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes 
The application of the principles of Equal Employment Opportunity is seen as an important part of 
College processes. This is reflected through the attitudes of the employees at Central West TAFE 
and a workplace that is free from harassment or discrimination. 
The College ensures all staff are aware of and are provided with comprehensive information 
relating to Equal Employment Opportunity through formal induction sessions for new staff and 
awareness raising sessions on staff development days. 

In the 2006-2009 Equity and Diversity Management plan, Indigenous Australians were selected as 
a priority area.  Although the College consistently reports staffing levels higher than the Public 
Sector average, the proportion of Indigenous Australians in the Central West region is markedly 
higher than the state average.  This is seen as an opportunity for a workforce that reflects the 
community representation and also its client profile.  A number of factors were identified, and 
strategies to improve the levels were set out in the Equity and Diversity Management Plan, which 
expand on those contained in the 2003-2005 Plan. 

Central West TAFE is required to identify objective levels for 2007 and 2009, in terms of 
percentage representation of the equity groups in the College employee population.  Public Sector 
agencies are encouraged to continuously improve the levels of representation, set realistic 
objectives and identify strategies to improve these levels.  The 2006 data collection enables the 
College to monitor its progress towards meeting these objectives.  Results indicate the College is 
generally achieving its goals.  Areas of excellence include the distribution of women, 100.1% and 
107.7% achievement against the targeted for the percentage of women on Tier 2 & 3 positions 
respectively.  Any improvements in the representation of these equity groups must be highly 
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regarded, given the current employment climate and the difficulty being experienced by all 
employers in the attraction and retention of staff. 

 
Staff Equity and Diversity Statistics as at 30th June 2006 are represented in the following table: 
 

 Actual 2006 Objective 2007 

 % 
Equity 
Index % 

Equity 
Index 

Equity Index for Women N/A 78.1 N/A 78.0 
% Women Tiers 2 & 3 53.8 N/A 50 N/A 
% Indigenous Australians 4.9 57.6 5.0% 42 
% People with Disabilities 1.9 61.7 2.0 N/A 
% People from Culturally Diverse Backgrounds 4.4 86.8 4.0 N/A 
 %Youth (< 25 years) 4.9 N/A 6.0 N/A 

 
 
Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 
The Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, The Public Sector Standards 
Code of Ethics and the Central West TAFE Staff Code of Conduct form an integral part of College 
operations. Central West TAFE is committed to ensuring compliance and best practice in all 
aspects of these standards and ethical codes.  The College ensures staff awareness of these 
codes through the induction of new staff and encouraging discussion and communication between 
current and new staff at team meetings and open forums. 

In 2006 Central West TAFE reviewed the results of its participation in a Climate Survey conducted 
by the Office of Public Sector Standards, which gave employees an opportunity to provide 
feedback on their views of the College’s compliance against the Public Sector Standards in Human 
Resource Management.  The overall results were positive and considered in reviewing policies and 
the organisational structure. 

The current polices and procedures relating to the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management can be easily accessed by all staff through the internal Intranet or via communication 
with their supervisor or Human Resources Section. 

During the reporting period, Central West TAFE received one request for review against the Public 
Sector Standards in Human Resource Management.  This was dealt with by conciliation and 
required no further action. 
 
Corruption Prevention 
The Central West TAFE Staff Code of Conduct outlines the expectation of staff regarding issues 
such as Honesty, Integrity, Use of Government Resources, Offer and Acceptance of Gifts, 
Conflicts of Interest and Ethical Principals and Issues.  Staff are provided with this information at 
the commencement of their employment with the College with the emphasis placed on the need for 
them to be mindful of their obligations as a government employee in relation to these matters. 

During 2006 all staff were provided with opportunities to attend awareness sessions in relation to 
corruption and misconduct and how to report such conduct.  Relevant staff undertook training in 
corruption prevention and worked towards the development of a “Corruption Prevention Policy” to 
be implemented in 2007.  This will assist staff and management to better understand their rights 
and obligations and provide clear guidance should the need arise.  

 
Public Interest Disclosure 
The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2003 came into effect in July 2003.  It defines special action 
that must be taken by Government agencies in relation to disclosures of public interest information 
that may show that a public authority, officer or contractor has been, or proposes to be involved in, 
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improper conduct, the committing of an offence, misuse of public resources, or an act or omission 
which poses a risk to the public or the environment.  There were no cases reported against the 
College or its officers during 2006. 

To ensure compliance with the legislation Central West TAFE is continuing to develop policy 
documents and guidelines to provide information to staff regarding their obligations and rights 
under the Act.  The College has appointed a Public Interest Disclosures Officer. 

 
Staffing Overview 
Central West TAFE employs staff in lecturing and non lecturing roles, including administration and 
support, plus diverse roles such as canteen and childcare.  The College is one of the largest 
employers in the region with an average of 180.34 full time equivalent staff employed during 2006. 
The average number of full time equivalents employed at each Campus over the period was as 
follows: 

 2005 2006 

Geraldton Campus 173.6 170.57 

Carnarvon Campus 11 8.01 

Exmouth Campus 2 1.76 

TOTAL 186.6 180.34 

 

 

Occupational Health & Safety and Workers Compensation 
The College continued to maintain its commitment to comply with the requirements of the 
Occupational Health and Safety Act 1984 and regulations by providing a safe and healthy working 
and learning environment for staff and students.  

For the 2006 reporting period 24 accident/incident reports and 29 near miss/hazards reports were 
reported across the College’s three campuses and investigated by Occupational Health and Safety 
Officers.  This represents an incident decrease of 40%. 

The following represents Central West TAFE’s Workers Compensation Claim history for the 
2004/2005 and 2005/2006 financial years.  All incidents were investigated by the Occupational 
Health and Safety Committee. 
 

 2004/2005 2005/2006 

No of Compensation Claims 5 2 

No of Estimated Days Lost 0 95 

Ave No of Estimated Days Lost 0 0 

Rehabilitation Success Rate 0% 50% 

Premium Rate 0.56 0.57 

 
 
Disclosure of Interest 
The following members of the College Governing Council have major interests in companies that 
supply goods and services to the College: 

Mr Barry Mitchell (Chair) - Mitchell and Brown Communications 
Mr Darren Lee (Industry Representative) – Market Creations 



Central West TAFE 
Annual Report 2006  
© CWCT 2007   Page 26 of 45 

Significant contracts (over $10,000) issued to these companies during the year ended 31 
December 2006 included: 
 

Company Details Expenditure 

Mitchell & Brown Communications Rimage Disclab N5200 with two 
DVD/CD recorders, Everest printer, 
50-disc capacity 

$17,589 
 

 
 
Risk Management 
The College continues to meet its legislative requirements by progressively developing its 
approach to risk management in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 109. In 2006 the College 
reviewed and updated policies and developed a draft risk management framework. The risk 
management framework will be further developed in 2007 in accordance with the implementation 
plan, including training for relevant staff. A risk management steering group has been identified 
and will assume overall responsibility for the implementation of the framework in 2007. 
 
The College continues to focus on an integrated approach where risk management is seen to be 
part of the organisation’s strategic planning and management processes. Existing risk 
management strategies associated with the Australian Quality Training Framework standards 
continue to form an integral part of the risk management approach. 
 
Legislation Impacting on the College 
Central West TAFE complies with the following legislation in carrying out its functions and 
activities: 

o Copyright Act 1968 
o Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
o Education Act 2004 
o Electoral Act 1907 
o Disability Services Act 1993 
o Financial Administration & Audit Act 1985 
o Freedom of Information Act 1992 
o Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987 
o Industrial Relations Act 1979 
o Industrial Training Act 1975 
o Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 
o Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984 
o Privacy Act 1988 
o Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 
o Public Sector Management Act 1994 
o Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972 
o State Supply Commission Act 1991 
o State Records Act 2000 
o Racial Discrimination Act 1975 
o Sexual Discrimination Act 1984 
o Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 
o Workers’ Compensation and Assistance Act 1981 
o Workplace Relations Act 1996 
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Western Australia Electoral Act 1907 (Section 175ZE):  Disclosure of Gifts 
and Other Expenditure 
 

Class Of Expenditure  Media Advertising Organisations 
Agency Name   Expenditure in 2006 
Absolute Promote Advertising   $1,970.00 
Active Community 1 year advertising in ACE 
no. 31 $45.45 
Advertising & Events   $2,009.26 
Batavia Coast FM   $4,328.74 
Cape Connection   $93.00 
City of Geraldton   $500.00 
Geraldton Newspapers  $17,719.54 
Geraldton Trophy Centre  $5,571.04 
Guardian Print   $22,600.01 
Haines Signs   $550.00 
Midwest Times   $11,214.13 
Mingenew Lions   $2,007.27 
Midwest Chamber of Commerce  $1,440.91 
Northern Guardian   $4,806.20 
Redwave    $3,079.00 
Rural Press   $1,854.00 
The West Australian   $1,006.09 
Yamiji News   $1,313.64 
   Total $82,108.28 
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS 
ACADEMIC TRAINING SERVICES  
 
Role and Functions 
The Academic and Training Services directorate is responsible for providing educational leadership 
and a broad range of academic support services to facilitate participation by clients in relevant, 
quality vocational education and training.  In 2006 this directorate was formed around six academic 
delivery areas which reflected the predominant industries of the region: 

Batavia Coast Maritime Institute 
Business and Computing 
Construction and Rural Industries 
Health and Community Services 
Hospitality, Education, Art and Tourism 
Metals, Mining and Transport 

 
Additional services to support academic delivery are provided through a range of specialist staff 
operating within the following teams: 

Academic Program Development 
Academic Support & Leadership 

 Business Development  
  
 
Challenges 2006 
Central West TAFE continued to respond to the identified vocational education and training needs 
of the region as well as drive opportunities in new and emerging industries within a Departmental 
no-growth scenario. This situation challenged staff to create innovative approaches to delivery in 
rural and isolated communities and provided the background for the development of focused 
consultation and training needs analysis activities with internal and external clients.  

Central West TAFE continues to be challenged by the need to provide timely training at the 
regional level in balance with state and national priorities. The College developed a number of 
training options in 2006 to respond to industry requirements and skills shortages, support the 
empowerment of Indigenous Australians and enhance social and economic independence within 
the region. 

Analysis of 2006 College training delivery indicates that delivery opportunities in traditional areas is 
declining with the resultant increased need for the College to further progress training in rural and 
isolated locations, undertake more focused and timely investigation into new and emerging 
industries and exploit commercial endeavours in a far more strategic manner.  

At the state and national levels skill shortages, current Government initiatives including increasing 
the compulsory school leaving age, introduction of Australian Technical Colleges and prioritisation 
of training opportunities to access and equity groups as well as changes in regulatory requirements 
such as the Community Development Employment Project (CDEP) are further compelling the 
College to reassess the way it does its business.  

The key driving forces outlined above are tempered by a number of restraining forces, including a 
continuing Departmental ‘no growth scenario’ and increased competition for product.  These 
driving forces will continue to challenge the organisation in 2007. 

The College has invested a significant proportion of its efforts into providing professional 
development to its staff and prides itself on the quality of its people and therefore the expertise that 
is available to the region. This high level of professional development will be further progressed in 
2007 and highlighted with a three day professional development program in July 2007. 

In 2006 the College was successful in attracting external funding for a large number of projects. 
These projects were progressed in addition to a wide variety of internally funded projects. While 
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these externally funded projects enhanced the College’s 2006 training delivery activities and have 
provided the stepping stones for further research, development and delivery they required a high 
level of on-going support and management by a range of staff members during the twelve-month 
period. This on-going support required careful planning and execution to ensure that the objectives 
of all projects were achieved and that staff members supporting the projects were appropriately 
skilled and resourced to sustain their involvement for the projects’ duration.  

 
Progress Against identified 2006 Priorities 

o The College continued to develop new methods of consultation with and service delivery to 
industry.  This included a review of the current processes in place, implementation of the 
Business Development Officer role and the development of engagement strategies specific 
to industry areas.   

o The College continued to collaborate with the Mid West District Education Office and other 
relevant agencies to implement initiatives identified in the District Education and Training 
Plan including the development of an Education Precinct in Geraldton. 

o The College continued to assess current training to regional communities and develop 
strategies to ensure increased training opportunities and career pathways for the future.  
This will be affected by the development of a process to undertake consultation with 
communities to identify current and future needs and the formation of specific community 
plans which will outline the provision of services over future years.  

o The College consolidated the support mechanisms within Central West TAFE to support 
lecturers in the delivery of training and assessment services.  This included targeted 
professional development, appropriate resourcing, clarification of roles, and improved 
induction and mentoring for staff undertaking new roles. This consolidation streamlined 
College activities and will require on-going monitoring to ensure continuous improvement 
and responsiveness to internal and external clients. 

o The College successfully implemented the Training and Assessment Training Package and 
provided professional development opportunities to up-skill new and existing lecturing staff 
in the TAA40104 Certificate IV in Training and Assessment.  During 2006 strategies were 
put in place for staff to access training and career pathways leading to achievement of the 
Diploma and Advanced Diploma qualifications. 

o In late 2005, the College received Department of Education and Training equipment funds 
to support a new initiative, Travelling Trades R Us. This initiative provided opportunity for 
trades delivery to be undertaken in 2006 in regional, rural and remote locations.  

o The College introduced the school apprenticeship link in the construction and automotive 
trades areas in 2006. The College will continue to explore strategies to support the 
enhanced delivery of flexible courses.  

o The College focused on completing the second and final stage of its black pearl seeding 
and harvesting project. 

 
Achievements 2006 
Innovation was a key feature of College activities in 2006 and a number of excellent ideas were 
presented and translated into tangible projects that focused on research, development, delivery 
and building the skills of the VET practitioner.  These projects required on-going commitment, 
discipline, patience and flexibility—four qualities that are integral to innovation and qualities which 
are not in short supply at Central West TAFE. 

Projects developed and delivered in 2006 achieved positive outcomes against the objectives 
outlined in Shaping Our Future, the national strategy for vocational education and training 2004-
2010 and well supported the Western Australian priorities outlined in TAFEWA Strategic Plan 2006 
- 2010. It is clear from our achievements that as a College we have embraced the national agenda, 
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support the State focus and continue to provide quality lifelong learning opportunities in a regional 
setting. 

Training delivery planning for the future was further streamlined in 2006 and provided opportunities 
for staff across the three campuses to participate more actively. Careful and timely planning in the 
year prior to new delivery is considered paramount to the College’s success and is reliant on the 
contributions of all staff.  

The following provides additional information regarding the Academic and Training Services 
contribution to achievement of the College’s six strategic directions. 
 
Strategic Direction Key Achievements 

The College delivered a number of trades related programs including electrical, 
carpentry and joinery, metal fabrication, automotive and boatbuilding which 
resulted in 80% of participants entering apprenticeships. 

The College continued to deliver the Capstone electrical licensing trade 
examination. 

The College initiated delivery of split system air conditioning for the first time in 
2006 with twelve students completing the qualification. 

The College has had a 100% increase in its stage one apprentices since 2003 
in trades related qualifications in response to identified regional skill shortages 
currently perpetuated by the Mid West and Pilbara resources boom. This 
increase has resulted in targeted infrastructure development and resource 
allocation to ensure the College has state of the art industry standard 
equipment to support its trade’s delivery. 

Construction of a simulator for developing improved transport methods for 
perishable goods was finalised. The simulator is now being used in an 
international project focused on delivery of goods to China. 

The College initiated and added Certificate IV in Out of School Hours Care to its 
scope of registration as per industry requirement to up skill current workers to 
this qualification. 

The training component of the black pearl program commenced on 22 August 
2005. Eight students representing the five active pearl farms in the Mid West 
region participated in an initial six day workshop held entirely at the Abrolhos 
Islands. Current students are farm owners, partners and managers and it is 
anticipated that an additional two students will join the program from Broome 
based pearling farms. All participating students achieved competency in the 
Certificate II in Seafood Industry (Aquaculture-Pearling). In 2006 students 
participated in the second stage of the program which aimed at achieving 
competence at the Certificate III Seafood Industry (Aquaculture-Pearling). 

The College continued to deliver the Certificate I in Engineering (Metal 
Fabrication) pre-apprenticeship in Carnarvon in response to industry demand 
where progression to apprenticeships from this program has been high. 

Construction and Rural Industries prepared the relevant documentation to add 
the Certificate III in Cabinet Making to its scope of registration with delivery 
commencement in second semester, 2006. 

Certificate IV in Social Housing was added to the College’s scope of 
registration. The College is currently awaiting direction from relevant partnering 
agencies. 

 

Meeting the skill 
needs of industry 

Certificate II in Sport and Recreation was added to the College’s scope of 
registration. Research will continue in 2007 to identify existing resources 
particularly in the areas of traineeships and school based traineeships. 
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The College successfully delivered the Certificate IV in Laboratory Operations 
in Dongara in response to identified skill shortages in the region. 

The College attracted funding from the Curriculum Services Support Network to 
organise and facilitate a two day forum to showcase the new Batavia Coast 
Maritime Institute and launch the revised Transport and Distribution (Maritime 
Operations) Training Package. 

The College enrolled fifteen students as existing worker trainees in the 
Certificate III in Aged Care, an identified skills shortage area. Completion is due 
in December 2007. 

The College added Master Class IV to its scope of registration to respond to 
industry requirement for training in offshore maritime duties. The College 
progressed the addition of MED1 to its scope of registration to support the 
industry requirement to progress marine and aquaculture joint ventures. 

 

The College has introduced the school apprenticeship link in construction, 
metals and automotive program areas. This program will be expanded in 2007 
to include commercial cookery and personal services. Industry has been very 
supportive of the school apprenticeship link program and has acknowledged the 
opportunities that it will provide to this region in 2007.  

The College completed a range of electrical and construction projects in 
partnership with Greenough Regional Prison including facilities at Coronation 
Beach; upgrading and extending the railway museum at Nanson; refurbishing 
the short term Salvation Army accommodation facility; creating signage and 
steel art features for the Greenough Heritage Centre and constructing pergolas 
for Crisis Care’s accommodation facility. 

The Training and Assessment Training Package was successfully implemented 
and provided professional development opportunities to up-skill new and 
existing lecturing staff in the TAA40104 Certificate IV in Training and 
Assessment.  During 2006 strategies were put in place for staff to access 
training and career pathways leading to achievement of the Diploma. 

Based on the outcomes of an assessment of equine training requirements in 
the Geraldton region in 2004, Central West TAFE progressed the development 
of the Certificate II in Equine Industry and Certificate III in Racing (Stable hand) 
in 2005. The course was successfully delivered in 2006 with a number of 
students gaining competency in these qualifications. 

The College received funding from the Department of Health and Ageing for its 
Aged Care Enrolled Nurse Medication Management Training Initiative. This 
initiative resulted in all enrolled students completing the training.  

The College applied for funding from the Department of Health and Ageing to 
support five students to undertake and complete the Certificate IV in Aged 
Care. This initiative was progressed in partnership with a local aged care 
facility. 

In efforts to provide workplace tourism training the College prepared flexible 
delivery resources to support open learning in tourism and hospitality across 
the regions. 

In addition to the Certificate II and Certificate IV in Visual Art and Contemporary 
Craft the College delivered the Bachelor of Arts (Visual Arts) in partnership with 
Edith Cowan University. 

Products and 
services that meet 
the needs of the 
Central West 

The College initiated investigation into the Certificate II in Sport and Recreation 
(Surfing) with the view to adding this qualification to the College’s scope of 
registration. 
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The College focused on developing and delivering the Marine Intervention 
Program in partnership with the WA Police to support youth at risk. 

The College received funding from the Department of Education and Training to 
increase the amount and quality of industry appropriate equipment to support 
furniture and cabinet making qualifications. 

Construction and Rural Industries delivered an innovative program focused on 
assessing the current competencies of local government workers in the 
workplace. This initiative targeted outside workers at the Greenough, Geraldton 
and Carnarvon shires and will be offered to other regional shires in 2007. These 
assessments resulted in participants gaining Rural Operations qualifications. 

Construction and Rural Industries delivered an innovative training program in 
conjunction with Iluka Resources. This initiative involved on-site training and 
assessment in Certificate III in Conservation and Land Management at Iluka’s 
Eneabba site. 

Construction and Rural Industries progressed a partnership with the 
Department of Agriculture and Food of Western Australia (DAFWA) to deliver 
and assess training for feral pest controllers. 

Construction and Rural Industries developed a flexible program focused on 
upfront assessment and gap training to individuals progressing the Australian 
Cabling Association (ACA) open registration. Approximately twenty participants 
from industry were enrolled in this program. 

The College conducted a training needs analysis of the hospitality and tourism 
industry in the Central West region to determine (a) the training requirements of 
this industry, (b) the resources and support mechanisms required to support 
such training. The training needs analysis resulted in the identification of key 
programs such as workplace tourism training, working with colleagues and 
customers and preparing and serving coffee. Specific skill sets identified will be 
developed in 2007. 

 

In partnership with Legal Aid Western Australia and Community Legal Centres 
Western Australia, Central West TAFE provided a customised traineeship to 
paralegal staff thereby increasing the skill base of first point of contact 
organisations in regional and rural communities. 

The College was successful in attracting funding to develop a strategy that (a) 
reflects the training needs of people with disabilities, (b) identifies training 
pathways for people with disabilities (c) identifies the number and type of 
training options available to support the needs of people with disabilities; (d) 
determines the professional development requirements of staff working with 
people with disabilities and the College training plan to support this 
requirement; (e) identifies policies, procedures and processes that adequately 
reflect the College’s ability to support the needs of people with disabilities and 
guide the organisation in the development and delivery of quality training 
products for this client group; (f) formalises the roles and responsibilities of 
partnering organisations and the level of support being provided by all parties to 
support identified training programs and (g) College training plans focusing 
specifically on options for people with disabilities. The project will commence in 
March 2007. 

The College is supporting the growing of silver perch as a product and tourist 
attraction in partnership with Chapman Valley entrepreneurs. 

Development of 
Sustainable regional 
communities 

 

The College continued to work closely with Geraldton Personnel, Holland Street 
School, ACTIV Industries, Disability Services Commission Geraldton Senior 
College and the community to provide training opportunities for students with a 
disability.  
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In partnership with the Wiluna Shire, the College delivered the Certificate III in 
Visual Art and Contemporary Craft with a pleasing number of these students 
achieving competence at the Certificate III level. The course has allowed 
participants the opportunity to discover their artistic talents and enjoy a high 
level of economic return on their paintings. 

In partnership with Mungullah Aboriginal Corporation and Hubble Street 
community centre the College delivered Gaining Access to Training and 
Employment to support identified needs of Indigenous clients for courses 
focused on self esteem and employability skills development. 

In partnership with MEEDAC the College delivered Gaining Access to Training 
and Employment to a group of fifteen Indigenous women at the Country 
Women’s Association. 

In partnership with Yullela Aboriginal Corporation, the College delivered the 
Certificate II in Engineering (Production) at Meekatharra. 

The College continues to provide vocational education and training options to 
young Indigenous males enrolled in Geraldton Senior College and attending the 
Mid West Football Academy. This program has been extremely successful and 
the partnership has ensured that the projects undertaken in a holistic manner at 
the Academy have had far reaching positive results for the students 
participating in the program.  Due to the enormous success of the program, the 
College has agreed to continue its involvement in the Academy in 2007.  

The College developed pathways documentation for all courses from secondary 
through VET to University and employment for all its courses in efforts to 
increase participation by Indigenous students at higher Australian Qualification 
Framework levels that align to regional, state and national Indigenous skills 
development priorities. This pathways documentation is used by all staff when 
assisting Indigenous clients to make decisions about courses of study and 
provides a framework within which to develop success strategies.  

Central West TAFE, in partnership with Wila Gutharra Aboriginal Corporation, 
received funding from the Department of Education and Training to develop and 
pilot an accredited course aimed specifically at increasing the pre-employability 
skills of CDEP participants, long-term unemployed and trainees in rural, 
regional and remote regions of Western Australia. Course materials were 
completed in 2005 and submitted to the Training Accreditation Council in early 
2006 for endorsement. The course was piloted with Wila Gutharra in second 
semester 2006. Twenty students enrolled in this program. 

In 2005 the College applied for and was successful in attracting funding for the 
development of a sustainable model to support Indigenous participation at the 
higher levels of VET. In 2006 the College increased the number of designated 
places across key skill shortage areas. Indigenous Training Services continued 
to progress professional development activities with College staff in efforts to 
identify opportunities for sharing information and advising Indigenous students 
on potential pathways and programs. The Pathways framework formed the 
basis of Indigenous Training Services operational planning and has supported 
the coordination of a number of key across College initiatives. 

Significant partner 
in the 
empowerment of 
Australian 
Indigenous Peoples 

In efforts to increase Indigenous participation in the Teacher Assistant field a 
cohort of Indigenous existing worker trainees have been enrolled in the 
Certificate III in Teacher Assistant (Indigenous) where a current skill shortage 
exists in regional and remote locations of the Central West region. 
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In 2006 the College implemented its first three day professional development 
conference.  Forty four different workshops were presented over the three days 
to cater for the professional development needs of both teaching and non 
teaching staff members.   

The TAA40104 Certificate IV in Training and Assessment was offered to all 
existing lecturers.  This was achieved through a combination of Recognition of 
Prior Learning (RPL), transfer of credit and delivery and assessment.  Many 
existing lecturing staff took advantage of this opportunity and it will continue to 
be made available to lecturing staff in 2007. 

Three professional development action learning projects were implemented 
around the focus of using mobile technologies such as Ultra Mobile Personal 
Computers (UMPC’s), Personal Digital Assistants (PDA’s) and mobile phones 
to assist lecturers to provide flexibility and mobility in their delivery and 
assessment to clients, particularly those in the workplace.  This will continue to 
be a professional development focus for 2007. 

The College invested significant time and effort preparing for the 2007 Scope 
Re-registration Audit. Academic Support staff assisted lecturers to review 
practices and procedures in relation to Standards 7, 8 and 9 and to refine key 
delivery and assessment documentation. 

The College managed twenty seven externally funded projects that have 
resulted in increased capacity and capability to develop and deliver training 
programs across the region.  

The College internally validates its assessment processes, tools and evidence 
contributing to the assessment judgements on all qualifications delivered. Over 
90% of staff members have contributed to this process over the year. The 
assessment validation process is one of the Colleges strategies for ensuring 
compliance to the AQTF and for the continuous improvement of assessment 
processes across the Academic Areas. Lecturing staff are supported in the 
implementation of the improvements that are highlighted. The process has also 
been reviewed to streamline it and to ensure it supports the lecturing staff in 
their development of quality assessment processes. 

The College continued to investigate e-learning tools and opportunities and to 
work closely with lecturing staff to embed blended learning in their training 
delivery. 

Excellence in 
support services 

 

The College implemented a strategy focused on providing academic staff with 
practical approaches to reducing invalid enrolments. The success of this 
strategy and its focus on continuous improvement will ensure its continuation in 
2007. 

The Department of Education and Training provided funding for the 
professional development of practitioners new to vocational education and 
training to develop leadership skills. Five practitioners were involved in this 
professional development program with a range of topics presented including 
leadership essentials, action learning, project management, people 
management and change management. 

Achieving 
professionalism in 
vocational education 
and training 

Implementation of a range of professional development Hot Topics utilising 
internal and external presenters showcasing best practice strategies, ideas and 
products. These Hot Topics included Busting the Assessment Myths, 
Indigenous Pathways, Duty of Care, Vet Assess, Tool Boxes and Mimio 
Boards. 
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The College received funding from Reframing the Future to support the 
development of a network of appropriate stakeholders from remote, rural and 
regional locations to assist in the unpacking of the new Information Technology 
Training Package (ICA04) with a focus on blended or mixed mode of delivery 
and flexible assessment practises.  A variety of stakeholders were engaged in 
professional development that allowed the sharing of a combination of personal 
experience and expert knowledge (in the region and industry) and ensured 
appropriate usage of technology and other delivery methodologies for delivery 
and assessment, resulting in consistent quality and a client focused approach.   

The College was successful in a number of funding applications from 
LearnScope to: 

Build the capacity of Central West TAFE staff to use ICT to improve delivery 
and assessment practices through the development of sound e-business 
strategies. 
Consolidate (a) the learning that has occurred through group and individual 
LearnScope projects over the last five years; and (b) the knowledge learned 
and to validate what is now current in an information technology/online 
environment. 
Integrate e-learning approaches into teaching and learning through the use 
of mobile technology devices in delivery and assessment. 
Provide vocational education and training practitioners with e-learning and 
technology skills 

The College received Professional Development Support Program (PDSP) 
funding to: 

Develop blended and flexible delivery resources across a range of industry 
areas. 
Modernise and update the Traineeship induction strategy and link to TAA 
unit. 

The College received funding from Reframing the Future to develop the skills of 
staff working in the area of Cabinet Making in relation to implementing 
qualifications from the Light Manufacturing Training Package. 

The College utilised Teaching Learning And Assessment Strategy Group 
(TLASG) funding to create a web based platform (electrowiki) for 
electrotechnology resources. 

The College utilised Teaching Learning And Assessment Strategy Group 
(TLASG) funding to develop and increase the flexible and remote area learning 
resources for flexible delivery including both paper based and electronic 
resources as appropriate. 

Batavia Coast Maritime Institute was short listed for WA Inventor of the Year for 
its Perishable Export Simulator. 

The College’s senior marine lecturer, Mr Craig Koltasz, received a 
commendation at the WA Premier Teacher of the Year Awards. 

 

Batavia Coast Maritime Institute won the WAFIC Seafood Training Industry 
Award for best Seafood Training organisation in Western Australia. 

 
 
Priorities for 2007 
In 2007 the Academic and Training Services directorate will increase its focus on the delivery of 
services which are sustainable and innovative and which provide the skills required for the future of 
industry, individuals and communities within the Central West region.  Key initiatives planned for 
2007 to assist in the achievement of these goals include: 
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o Enhance flexible and blended delivery capabilities of all staff to respond to industry demand 
for skills recognition, on-the-job workplace training and assessment and gap training; 

o Implement TAFEWA technical skills project at Central West TAFE; 
o Continue to focus on the identification, development and implementation of new 

qualifications to support the resources sector; 
o Progress selective breeding, species specialisation and environmental monitoring in 

partnership with industry; 
o Collaboration across faculty areas to develop and deliver a unique marine tourism program;  
o Develop and deliver Certificate II in Sport and Recreation (Surfing); 
o Partner with industry to breed silver bream for use in local enterprises; 
o The development of the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute will remain a high priority in 2007. 

This will include formalisation of partnerships and identification of research and training 
opportunities; 

o Finalise the black pearl research, development, education and training program; 
o Embed employability skills in current business and computing qualifications in response to 

industry demand; 
o Deliver the commercial cookery and personal services school apprenticeship link (SAL) 

programs; 
o Investigate opportunities to offer a different stream in the Diploma of Information 

Technology; 
o Develop and deliver training programs to respond to the identified needs of the hospitality 

industry; 
o Continue the development of workplace assessment in skill shortage areas of construction 

and rural industries; 
o Continue to work with Indigenous communities to identify training programs that will 

increase community sustainability and build on previous achievements and training in 
construction and rural industries; 

o Focus on supporting the increased take up of apprentices in hairdressing; 
o Prepare for implementation of the Diploma Enrolled Nursing within the new Health Training 

Package; 
o Develop and implement preparatory nursing course in Carnarvon; 
o Focus its mobile trades unit on the delivery of computerised manufacturing to this 

expanding industry in the region; 
o Focus on increased delivery in the Gascoyne for Indigenous clients particularly those 

undertaking the Certificate I in Industrial Skills and those programs identified as providing 
increased opportunities for social and economic independence; 

o Focus on community consultation with Indigenous Australians in the Mt Kennedy and 
Burringurrah areas in efforts to identify appropriate skills sets for delivery at both these 
remote and isolated locations. 

 
 

ORGANISATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 
 

Role & Function 
The Organisational Effectiveness directorate is responsible for enhancing internal and external 
client focus; providing organisational development through a range of strategic planning and 
performance management services; and developing the organisation's learning culture.  This 
College directorate supports the learning activities of the College’s external clients (individuals, 
communities and industry) and supports training delivery management through the provision of a 
range of services.   Services are provided by a diverse range of staff operating within the following 
teams: 
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 Client Services 
 Indigenous Training Services 
 Learning Resource Centre  

Quality and Organisational Planning & Performance  
 Training Support Services 
 Regional Campuses – Carnarvon and Exmouth 
  
  
Challenges 2006 
Many of the challenges in 2006 arose from the changing external environment, characterised by 
regional economic growth, that saw the significant increase in employment based training continue, 
particularly in apprenticeships, in an effort to address critical skill shortages affecting regional 
industry. Further challenges arose from a focus on higher AQF levels and increasing links between 
training and employment outcomes for Indigenous clients; and the challenges presented by the 
increasing number of young people attending the College. The diversity of roles within the 
Directorate is challenging in itself, however, that same diversity also presented opportunities for 
creative thinking between the teams and for the development of innovative strategies to meet client 
needs. 
 
There were internal challenges to be met also, with a new organisational structure implemented in 
January 2006.  Previously separate areas of the organisation were brought together to form the 
Training Support Services team who support academic areas in management of delivery; 
employment based training management; student administration; training delivery systems; and 
eBusiness. TSS provides a coordinated service across each of the College’s campuses. 
 
The responsibilities of the Client Services team were expanded to include Youth Initiatives, a role 
created to support the increasing participation in College programs by the 15 – 19 year old group. 
Management of VET for School Students programs became a key focus of this new role in 2006. 
The increased number of students with disabilities also impacted on this area with additional 
mentoring and support being provided through Disability Services. 
 
The Indigenous Training Services team was formalised in the beginning of 2006 and a new 
manager appointed to lead this group in developing across College strategies for increasing 
participation and outcomes for Indigenous people in VET throughout the region. The Learning 
Resources Centre also became part of Organisational Effectiveness in 2006, reflecting the role this 
area plays in supporting and servicing internal and external clients across the College. 
 
The identification and provision of programs for young people, including youth at risk, is one of the 
College’s fastest growing areas of service development and delivery. Provision of career and 
course advice and information; student support services and management of the VET in Schools 
program are all key initiatives in this area. In 2006 work also began in preparation for the 
implementation of the Duty of Care for Minors Attending TAFEWA policy, to be in place for the 
commencement of 2007. Teams continued to work closely with the Mid West District Education 
office to plan programs and services aimed at achieving the objectives for the Central West region 
outlined in the District Education and Training Plan. The College also contributed to the 
development of the 2007 plan, to be known now as the Education and Training Participation Plan 
with a specific focus on addressing the needs of young people not engaged. 
 
Indigenous Training Services responsibilities also included the management of programs delivered 
at the Greenough Regional Prison and coordination of College relationships with the Telecentre 
network.  These new areas of responsibility are aligned with ITS’ regional and community 
consultation roles and opened up new opportunities for training development for this team. The 
major challenge however related to increasing training delivery options to enable Indigenous 
people to share in the growth in employment and wealth creation opportunities presented by the 
current regional boom, particularly in the resources sector. This continues to be a focus for the ITS 
team and the College with several large projects planned for 2007. 
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Achievements 2006 
In 2006 teams within Organisational Effectiveness consolidated their new responsibilities and 
worked with internal clients to improve processes that support training delivery particularly in the 
areas of VET for School Students; Prison delivery; employment based training administration 
processes; and preparation for introduction of the Duty of Care for Minors policy. Training and 
support for the implementation of new systems to support training delivery including ASRI, Unified 
Enrolments (UE) and the Client Liaison and Management System (CLAMS) were also provided in 
2006.  
 
2006 continued the increasingly productive working relationship with local and regional schools to 
develop learning pathways for secondary students and to develop options for students at risk of 
disengaging from the education and training environment. The College supported the Participation 
Unit and contributed to the development of processes to manage students of mandatory schooling 
age. The College continues to action the priorities of the District Education and Training Plan and 
provided input into the development of the 2007 Plan.  Plans for the Education and Training 
Precinct progressed in 2006 with many aspects of the project reaching the final proposal stage. 
Funding has been allocated for major re-developments of the Central West TAFE campus in the 
trades areas, which will allow more capacity for engagement of school students in VET programs.   
 
The development of learning pathways for Indigenous clients remains a strong focus for the 
Organisational Effectiveness area. In 2006 participation rates remained high for Indigenous clients 
however we are still not seeing significant progress in the number of students at the higher AQF 
levels or in successful completions. There are a range of strategies aimed at increasing successful 
outcomes (through ongoing mentoring programs and the identification of learning and career 
pathways); addressing some of the barriers to participation (provision of scholarships to assist with 
the cost of training); and strategies to increase the number of Indigenous clients studying in the 
higher levels of the AQF, which in 2007 will be reviewed and re-vamped.    
 
 
 
Strategic Direction Key Achievements 

Meeting the skill 
needs of industry 

A pilot program to provide entry level training for young Indigenous 
males was run in 2006 with significant contributions from  two local 
businesses. Oxiania Mining and Central Earthmoving provided 
funding, workplace training and ongoing employment opportunities 
for the four month program with the College providing training, 
equipment and facilities to support delivery.  

 Industry Advisory Committees in Geraldton and Regional Advisory 
Committees at Carnarvon and Exmouth continued to provide 
industry input into training including validation of learning and 
assessment strategies. 

 In 2006 the College undertook a training needs analysis of the 
hospitality and tourism industry in the Gascoyne region. A number of 
businesses were consulted about training requirements; preferred 
format and timing of training for industry; and an analysis of training 
facilities was undertaken. The TNA provided the basis for delivery of 
Certificate II in Tourism in Exmouth in Semester Two and informed 
training delivery planning for 2007 for both Carnarvon and Exmouth. 
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Products and 
services that meet 
the needs of the 
Central West 

The College implemented strategies and actions identified in the 
2006 District Education and Training Plan with a range of programs 
that had been identified as providing options for young people in the 
region at risk of disengaging from education and training. In addition 
to potential training options the DETP also outlines support 
strategies such as mentoring as being crucial to increasing retention 
and success for young people. Close communication with the 
Participation Unit and involvement on forums such as the Transition 
Reference Group (the LCP) maintains the College as a key 
stakeholder in the development of strategies to address retention of 
at risk young people. 

 The VET in Schools program has grown from a small number of 
hours several years ago to a significant program that involves the 
delivery of programs through profile (publicly funded) hours;  
auspicing (fee for service) arrangements; School Based 
Traineeships; and the School Apprentice Link (SAL) program. In 
2006 the SAL was introduced in three industry areas Metals, 
Automotive and Building and Construction, with an additional two 
areas planned for delivery in 2007 (Commercial Cooking and 
Personal Services).  Many of the VETSS programs are delivered in 
regional and remote schools, providing valuable options for these 
schools to retain their students.  

 In 2006 the College continued to develop services to address the 
needs of students with a disability. The College has recorded an 
increase in the number of students identifying as having a disability 
and requesting assistance to undertake their study over the past two 
years. This resulted in pressure on services to support students, in 
particular students whose learning difficulties or behaviour issues 
were impacting on their ability to participate effectively.  

Development of 
Sustainable regional 
communities 

 

The College undertook consultations in regional and remote 
locations during 2006. Community input into training, particularly 
involving the CDEP’s, form the basis of planning for on-site delivery 
of programs in communities. The College’s successful delivery 
model has provided numerous programs in regional and remote 
locations where live work projects have provided not only training 
opportunities but also lasting improvements to local infrastructure 
and community facilities. 

 The College is a member of the Midwest Gascoyne Regional 
Human Services Managers group with a brief to improve the delivery 
of government services through collaboration and cooperative 
efforts 

 College links with the Telecentre network were renewed in 2006. 
The College hosted a full day meeting for Telecentre Coordinators 
and relevant College staff to review opportunities for better linkages 
between the Telecentres and the College. The Telecentre 
Partnership Agreements were also reviewed and updated and in 
early 2007 staff will visit Telecentres to meet with Coordinators and 
Management Committee Chairs to discuss the new provisions of the 
Agreements.   
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Significant partner 
in the empowerment 
of Australian 
Indigenous Peoples 

Eleven scholarships were awarded to Indigenous students through 
the College’s Aboriginal Scholarship Program to assist in addressing 
potential barriers to participation arising from the cost of training. In 
addition three Indigenous students were also successful in 
accessing other scholarships to support their studies. 

 The College delivered training programs in a number of regional and 
remote locations for Indigenous clients in 2006 through both profile 
and CAT tender delivery including: 

 Meekatharra  

 Wiluna  

 Buringurrah Community  

 Mullewa  

 Yalgoo 

 Carnarvon  

 Mungullah Village, near Carnarvon  

 Yulga Jinna Community 

 Karalundi  

 The College is a co-signatory to a MOU with the Yamaji Land and 
Sea Council, along with eight other Midwest companies and 
agencies, to maximise education and training opportunities arising 
from Native Title arrangements and land use agreements between 
Indigenous claimant groups and mining companies. The College 
has also placed a Training Alliance Manager with the Land and Sea 
Council to assist in identifying training needs for their staff and 
members of the claimant groups. 

 

 Indigenous Education and Employment Training Committees 
(IEETC) operated in both Geraldton and Carnarvon providing 
community input into the planning and review of programs for 
Indigenous clients. 
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Excellence in 
support services 

 

The formation of the Training Support Services team has allowed 
the opportunity to review the way in which services to support 
academic areas are provided. A TSS Reference Group comprising 
academic and TSS representatives provides a forum for raising 
issues that need resolving and for setting priorities. 2007 will see 
further development of these support services. 

 
Additional services and work processes have been developed to 
support the delivery of VET for School Student programs and 
delivery to the Prison, ensuring high quality accurate processes are 
used to plan and deliver these programs. 

 
The Learning Resource Centre continued to deliver a range of 
services to support both students and staff with quality, timely 
information and learning materials. The LRC delivers student 
induction programs introducing students to online information 
resources; searching strategies; research techniques and 
appropriate referencing of sources.  

 
Ongoing review of the quality management system was undertaken 
in 2006 with a major review to be conducted in 2007 in conjunction 
with the re-registration audit and introduction of the new Australian 
Quality Training Framework standards.  

 
Preliminary work begun in 2006 to implement the Duty of Care for 
Minors policy will be built upon in 2007. Staff were provided with 
information sessions and a number of processes were reviewed in 
2006 in readiness for the policy’s introduction in the beginning of 
2007. 

Achieving 
professionalism in 
vocational education 
and training 

The College commenced recruitment for an Indigenous Lecturer 
Cadet as part of a TAFEWA project funded by the College, DET and 
the National Indigenous Cadetship Program. The Cadet will 
commence in 2007 and will undertake a two year cadetship 
combining part time lecturing with the remainder of time spent 
undertaking the Diploma in Training and Assessment. Upon 
successful completion of the two year program the cadet will be 
offered a contract lecturing appointment in the College. This project 
is one strategy to increase the number of Indigenous people in 
lecturing positions within the TAFEWA colleges. 
 

 
 
Priorities for 2007 
In 2007 the Organisational Effectiveness directorate will consolidate its leadership role in ensuring 
the College has the appropriate support services in place to meet the needs of internal and 
external clients and to further develop the service culture of the organisation. The changes 
resulting from the restructure implemented in 2006 enables the area to work more closely with the 
academic portfolios to develop and refine services that support training delivery, increasing the 
effectiveness and efficiency of processes and systems. The directorate will continue to provide 
training services to the region which are sustainable, innovative, and meet the skills needs of 
industry and communities. Key initiatives planned for 2007 to assist in the achievement of these 
goals include: 
 

 Ongoing review and development of the strategic plan using a planning framework that 
ensures alignment of activities to the principles of government policy documents such as 
Better Planning: Better Futures and key State and Federal Vocational Education and 
Training strategies. The area is responsible for provision of information and advice to 
academic areas to inform training delivery planning that is based on industry and 
environmental analysis and a strong understanding of the state and national training 
agenda. 
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 In conjunction with DET and other TAFEWA colleges act on the recommendations of the 
Skills Formation Taskforce report into the apprenticeship and traineeship system in 
Western Australia to create a more streamlined and effective system that benefits  
students, employers and College staff. 

 Act to develop a strategy to increase the number of Indigenous people accessing 
apprenticeships and traineeships in the region. Stakeholders including industry and 
Indigenous organisations will be engaged through several projects proposed for 2007 
relating to employment opportunities for Indigenous people in the resources sector. This 
provides the opportunity to build on and expand the successful model used in the delivery 
of entry level training for mining training in 2006. 

 Continue to work closely with academic areas to identify, refine or develop processes that 
support training delivery particularly in the areas of increasing numbers in employment 
based training and flexible delivery through the Training Support Services team.   

 Continue implementation of the Duty of Care for Minors Attending TAFEWA policy ensuring 
staff are aware of and able to respond to their responsibilities under this policy. Ongoing 
participation in the TAFEWA working group will be critical as the policy enters the second 
phase of implementation in Semester Two 2007. 

 In 2007 the College will undertake a full re-registration audit through the Training 
Accreditation Council to maintain our status as a Registered Training Organisation.  In 
addition new Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF) standards will be implemented 
nationally from July 2007, which will introduce “outcomes based” auditing of RTOs. These 
events both provide the ideal opportunity to fully review the College’s quality management 
systems to ensure they effectively support the operations of a leading RTO in the dynamic 
and rapidly changing VET environment.  

 Staff within Organisational Effectiveness will work closely with regional campus staff to 
improve delivery of “across-College” services particularly in the areas of training support 
services; Indigenous training development; learning resources; student services and 
support for students with special needs. 

 The Indigenous Training Services team will provide a driving force in ensuring the provision 
of training services which contribute to the empowerment of Indigenous Australians within 
the Central West region. In 2007 the College will progress preliminary work on the 
development of an identified Indigenous Learning and Services Centre on the Geraldton 
campus. 

 Continue to develop relationships with local and regional schools and the Participation Unit 
to develop learning and career pathways for students in the region. The development of 
further VET for School Students options, including the introduction of two new industry 
areas to the Schools Apprentice Link (SAL) program in 2007 will provide additional options 
for students. 

 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

Role & Function 
The Corporate Services directorate is responsible for developing and implementing systems and 
processes that support the business and administrative environment of the College and ensuring 
the organisation fulfils its statutory requirements.  To fulfil this role the directorate works closely 
with internal customers and external stakeholders to provide services across four key areas: 

 Financial Services 
Human Resources 

 Information Systems 
 Physical Resources 
 
Challenges 2006 
In 2006 both the Finance and Human Resource sections of Corporate Services were involved in 
the introduction of the Education and Training’s Shared Service Centre.  This involved reviewing 
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finance and human resource processes and procedures and providing training to College staff on 
the relevant changes.   

The CMIS/FMIS interface continued to be a constructive tool in reconciling the finance system with 
the student database in order to satisfy audit requirements.  Procurement continued to reap the 
benefits and savings from the Department of Treasury and Finance’s Regional Buying Centre, 
through its contract management and advisory service.  Other procurement savings are being 
realised through the use of the Department’s Common Use Arrangements.  

During 2006 the high economic activity in Western Australia, and especially the Mid West, 
impacted on the attraction and retention of full time and casual staff, resulting in a higher then 
average number of staff movements.  The College was unable to match the private sector salaries 
offered in skill shortage areas but met the challenge by promoting the attractive working conditions 
and flexibility available in the public sector, along with additional programs such as professional 
development, health benefits (e.g. health examinations and information, flu injections, spectacles) 
and phased retirement.  Inductions were enhanced to provide information about a range of 
matters, including benefits, immediately upon commencement and mentors appointed for all new 
staff.  The College Equity & Diversity Plan maximises recruitment options.  The Workforce 
Management Plan is under review in consideration of the expected ongoing difficulties in attraction 
and retention of staff. 

The Physical Resources section of Corporate Services is responsible for the effective provision 
and maintenance of facilities and the environment of the College to support its business 
operations. This includes management of physical assets, including buildings and equipment, 
records management; and the management of capital and minor works projects. In 2006 the area 
facilitated the construction of the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute and the rectification of defects.  

Information Systems is the information communications and technology services branch. In 2006 
the area continued to provide a high level of technology service to clients, providing solutions, 
managing incidents, problems, and implementing changes.  

 
Achievements 2006 

Strategic Direction Key Achievements 

Meeting the skill 
needs of industry 

The completion of the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute in 2006 is the 
culmination of almost ten years of planning. Physical Resources area provided 
overall coordination for the College, including specifications for and advice on 
equipment and facilities requirements for the Institute. 

Products and 
services that meet 
the needs of the 
Central West 

Planning for the Educational Precinct facility resulting in the commitment of 3.22 
million dollars for capacity building for education and training facilities in the Mid 
West. 

Significant maintenance works were carried out at the Carnarvon and Geraldton 
campuses in 2006. The second floor of the Carnarvon Campus was refurbished 
and two residential units in Geraldton were completed as part of the ongoing 
upgrading of these facilities. 

During 2006 the College acted on recommendations from previous energy 
audits in order to achieve required energy savings (SEDO Targets) and 
undertook a waste and water management audit. 

Development of 
Sustainable regional 
communities 

 

Information Systems has technology in remote locations, and manages 
approximately 800 devices across one of the largest geographical areas in the 
world. To increase capacity to the regional campuses broadband 10Mbps 
services continue to provide the communication, and collaboration between 
campuses, and individuals. This has allowed us to consolidate our 
infrastructure into regional campuses. 
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Significant partner 
in the 
empowerment of 
Australian 
Indigenous Peoples 

In the Central West TAFE 2006-2009 Equity and Diversity Management plan, 
Indigenous Australians were selected as a priority area.  Although the College 
consistently reports staffing levels higher than the Public Sector average, the 
proportion of Indigenous Australians in the Central West region is markedly 
higher than the state average.  This is seen as an opportunity for a workforce 
that reflects the community representation and also its client profile.  A number 
of factors were identified, and strategies to improve the levels were set out in 
the Equity and Diversity Management Plan. 

Considerable work was undertaken in preparation for transition of some human 
resources functions to the Education & Training Shared Services Centre 
(ETSSC) in November 2006.  Planning included review of a service level 
agreement, a gap and risk transition analysis, development of agreed 
processes, a FTE analysis, surveys, newsletters, staff training, and a readiness 
assessment, all of which resulted in a smooth transition at minimal risk to the 
College.  In scope activities performed by the Shared Service Centre now 
includes payroll and leave processing, organisational data management, 
reporting and some aspects of recruiting.   

A study by the internal auditors in 2006 revealed some areas on improvement 
in the financial operation of the College canteen. All improvements identified 
were implemented during 2006.   In addition considerable work was undertaken 
to improve the food safety of the canteen.  Following this work the canteen was 
assessed by the City of Geraldton as an “Accredited FoodSafe Establishment”. 
This has given the College additional assurance that the food provided to staff 
and students is of good quality and is hygienically prepared.   

The College continues to monitor use of vehicles in order to comply with State 
Government Fleet Management policies. During 2006 the College initiated a 
FleetSafe program that will be rolled out in 2007. 

The College operated an effective Occupational Health and Safety program in 
2006. The Occupational Health and Safety Committee met on ten occasions 
during 2006. Training for First Aid Officers, Safety Representatives, Fire 
Wardens and other courses was undertaken.  Priority tasks undertaken during 
2006 included the identification of employees involved in manual handling and 
the initiation of a manual handling training courses.   

To further enhance services Information Systems deployed the new Pcounter 
system to monitor cost recovery on copying, and printing services with a return 
on investment of $80,000 per year. The service desk continues to provide 
support, and service functions in Information Communication and Technology 
to clients against service level agreement threshold targets to ensure incidents 
are managed and fixed without major interruption to business unit or training 
delivery operations. The team operations have been operating in an ITIL quality 
standard foundation for three years which has seen major client service 
improvements. 

A new investment into a backup service CommVault continues to protect vital 
information in the event of a disaster or loss of data. Overall this provides 
comprehensive backup services for business continuity. 

Excellence in 
support services 

 

The Identity Management System project initiative is designed to enhance 
security, and provide entitlements to staff, and students contributing to 
improving a level of service to clients with the flexibility to provide access to the 
resources required to perform their duties, and studies respectively without 
interruption across all four campuses. 

Achieving 
professionalism in 
vocational education 

In conjunction with the Principal Lecturers, Human Resources staff coordinated 
a wide ranging program of professional development for lecturing and non 
teaching staff. Opportunities were provided for lecturers to address priority skills 
development needs, in line with TLASG funding priorities. 
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During 2006 the Human Resources Section ensured compliance with the 
Department of Education and Training Criminal Screening Policy (which 
includes TAFE Colleges) by ensuring all staff had submitted a consent to 
criminal screening which checks actual and spent convictions against the 
national database. 

and training 

Human Resources Section continued to monitor the Training and Assessment 
qualifications of lecturers where it related to salary progression and 
commenced development of a policy to provide progression upon achievement 
of a range of qualifications. To support this, the staff training records database 
was enhanced and ensures compliance with AQTF. 

 

Priorities for 2007 
o The Human Resources and Finance areas of Corporate Services will continue to liaise and 

streamline communications and processes with the Education and Training Shared 
Services Centre.  Standardisation of processes with other Colleges will be a key priority as 
well as endeavouring to maintain the level of service to Central West TAFE internal and 
external clients given the reduction in staffing.  Further services to be implemented in 2007 
include Occupational Health & Safety, workers compensation and injury management, and 
training and development.  During 2007 several College polices will be reviewed and 
amended to reflect the new role of Shared Services. 

o Given the Section 40 Estimates are forecasting an operating deficit, prudent financial 
management will be required throughout 2007 in such areas as student curriculum hours, 
maximising potential savings from Regional Buying Centre in procurement and reviewing 
College staffing levels and functions. 

o In 2007 the new Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 applies to the 
College and Human Resources Section will be responsible for ensuring all staff who work 
with children in connection with College activities are compliant.  The checks are conducted 
in accordance with a phasing in schedule so that all relevant staff will be checked by 2010.  
The process is in addition to the DET Criminal Screening Check as it considers a smaller 
range of offences against children but may inquire into non-convictions. 

o The handover of the new Educational Precinct facilities is expected in December 2007, with 
the final fit out being completed in time for delivery of training in Semester One 2008. 
Corporate Services, in particular the Physical Resources area will continue to manage the 
development of the facility in conjunction with the Academic areas  to ensure the facility is 
able to deliver quality training 

o In 2007 Corporate Services will continue in the systematic and coordinated approach to 
strategic resource management.   

o In 2007 Information Systems will introduce new technology services such as a customised 
Beauty Salon System for appointment bookings, stock control, and cash register. Provide 
computer access to third party students, and clients through the Identity Management 
System in particular the Geraldton University Centre, and Geraldton Senior College. 

o The ongoing development and implementation of the Workforce Development Plan will 
focus on recruitment and retention strategies during 2007. 
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CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006 
 
 
 
 
 
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are 
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Central West TAFE’s 
performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Central West TAFE for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________    23rd February 2007 
Barry Mitchell           
Chairperson, College Governing Council 
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Managing Director 
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DESIRED OUTCOME 
“The provision of vocational education and training services that meet the community and 
industry training needs of the Central West region.” 
 
Central West TAFE has developed Key Performance Indicators to report performance 
relating to the effectiveness and efficiency with which the above outcome has been achieved 
by the College. The College uses the indicators in reviewing its performance and in its 
ongoing commitment to improve its programs and services.   
 
 
EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS 
 
1.1 Student Satisfaction 

This indicator measures the extent to which clients are satisfied with the training received 
from Central West TAFE and relates to the College’s objective of providing vocational 
education and training services which meet the needs of clients.   

Figures for the indicator are derived from a state wide Student Satisfaction Survey 
commissioned annually by the Western Australian Department of Education and Training 
through an independent provider.  In 2006 this provider was Colmar Brunton.  The survey 
seeks students’ views on the quality of vocational education and training services being 
delivered.  Students were asked about their level of satisfaction with their course, the quality 
of teaching, the delivery support and the advisory services.  The measurement of student 
satisfaction is the percentage of enrolled students who overall were either satisfied or very 
satisfied with their course. 
 
Table One : Overall Student Satisfaction 
 

Central West TAFE WA Average 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2003 2004 2005 2006 

87% 83% 89% 89% 85% 84% 85% 86% 

Note:  Standard Error rate for 2006 data was ± 4.15% at 95% confidence level. 
 

The percentage of Central West TAFE students who indicated they were “Very satisfied” or 
“Satisfied” with their course in 2006 was 89%. This result is consistent with the College’s 
figure for 2005 and is slightly higher than that recorded for the state in 2006 (86%).  

The survey employed multiple data collection techniques, namely mail, online and Computer 
Assisted Telephone Interviews (CATI). In 2006 the usable population for Central West TAFE 
was 1,794 students, of which 1,414 individuals were contacted with 298 usable returns, this 
being a response rate of 21%.   
 
 
1.2 Graduate Satisfaction with Achievement of Main Reason for Doing Course 
 
Central West TAFE aims to provide training that meets the needs of our clients. The extent to 
which graduates of Central West TAFE had fully or partially achieved their main reason for 
undertaking the course provides a measure of how well the College is meeting client needs 
with quality training. 

The indicator is based on a national student outcomes survey commissioned by the National 
Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) that targets students who successfully 
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completed a vocational qualification with a VET provider in the previous year and had an 
Australian address as their usual residence. 

The graduate satisfaction measure shows the percentage of graduates who indicated they 
had fully achieved (Yes) or partly achieved their main reason for doing the training.  The 
question had four response options ‘Yes’, ‘No’, ‘Partly’ or ‘Don’t know yet’ with some students 
electing not to provide a response to the question. 

In 2003 the Student Outcomes Survey Graduate Satisfaction Rate was based on all 
graduates, whereas in 2005 the Student Outcomes Survey Graduate Satisfaction Rate was 
based on respondents no longer enrolled. ie, graduates who re-enrolled were excluded from 
the calculation.    
 
Table Two: Graduate Satisfaction with Achievement of Main Reason for Doing the Course 
 

Graduate Satisfaction (Yes and partly) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Central West TAFE 80% 80% NA* 84% NA* 

Western Australia 77% 77% NA* 84% NA* 

Australia 78% 78% NA* 85% NA* 

 
* 2004 and 2006 data is unavailable due to a change in survey methodology by NCVER to a 
small sample size resulting in data not considered reliable for reporting purposes. The College 
was unable to provide an update to this Key Performance Indicator in 2004 and 2006 as 
statistically valid College data is not available. 

 
The National Centre for Vocational Education Research now conducts surveys with an 
appropriate sample design to produce statistically reliable data in alternative years, 
commencing from 2005. The results of 2005 can be compared with those of 2003. 
 
In 2005 a total of 84% of Central West TAFE graduates indicated that they had achieved or 
partly achieved their main reason for doing the course. This represents an increase for the 
College over the 2003 result, and compares with the Western Australian average of 84%, 
which has also experienced an increase since 2003. The national average of 85% is slightly 
higher than both the College result and the WA average.  
 
In 2005 the survey questionnaires were mailed to a stratified, randomly selected sample of 
Central West TAFE graduates. There were 391 responses. This represents an overall 
response rate of 36% excluding refusals / return to sender.  
 
1.3 Proportion of Graduates in Employment 
 
The proportion of graduates in employment is an effectiveness measure that describes the 
extent to which Central West TAFE is delivering relevant training programs that enhance the 
opportunities for graduates to enter the workforce. 

The indicator is based on a national student outcomes survey commissioned by the National 
Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) that targets students who successfully 
completed a vocational qualification with a VET provider in the previous year and had an 
Australian address as their usual residence.  

The survey asks graduates to indicate their labour force status as at the end of May of the 
preceding year.  Graduate employment status is measured for each category (employed, not 
employed, and not in the labour force) and obtained by calculating the ratio of graduates in 
each category compared to total respondents and expresses as a percentage. 

In 2003 the Student Outcomes Survey Proportion of Graduates in Employment Rate was 
based on all graduates, whereas in 2005 the Student Outcomes Survey Proportion of 
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Graduates in Employment Rate was based on respondents no longer enrolled. ie, graduates 
who re-enrolled were excluded from the calculation. 

Table Three : Employment Status  
 

 CWT CWT CWT CWT CWT WA Australia 

Year 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2005 2005 

Employed 71% 73% NA* 73% NA* 78% 79% 

Unemployed 14% 12% NA* 10% NA* 9% 10% 

Not in Labour Force 15% 13% NA* 17% NA* 13% 11% 

 
* 2004 and 2006 data is unavailable due to a change in survey methodology by 
NCVER to a small sample size resulting in data not considered reliable for reporting 
purposes. The College was unable to provide an update to this Key Performance 
Indicator in 2004 and 2006 as statistically valid College data is not available. 

 
The National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) now conducts surveys 
with an appropriate sample design to produce statistically reliable data in alternative years 
commencing from 2005. The results of 2005 can be compared with those from 2003. 
 
73% of Central West TAFE graduates indicated they were employed at the time of the survey 
(27th May 2005).  This is the same rate as reported for the College in 2003 and is lower than 
the state and national averages of 78% and 79% respectively. 
 
10% of Central West TAFE graduates considered themselves unemployed.  This represents 
a decrease of 2% in the rate compared to 2003 and is comparable with both the state and 
national average of 9% and 10% respectively. 17% of graduates were “not in the labour 
force” (people who were neither employed nor actively looking for work) compared to the 
state and national averages of 13% and 11% respectively.  
 
In 2005 the survey questionnaires were mailed to a stratified, randomly selected sample of 
Central West TAFE graduates. There were 391 responses. This represents an overall 
response rate of 36% excluding refusals / return to sender.  
 
1.4 Achievement of Profiled Delivery 
 
The College’s Delivery and Performance Agreement, or Profile as it is commonly termed, is 
determined on a yearly basis and reflects the Department of Education and Training’s State 
Training Profile.  The State Training Profile is developed through an extensive consultation 
process with stakeholders throughout Western Australia and incorporates a wide range of 
inputs, including: 

o Industry training and employment requirements – incorporating industry training plans 
developed by the Industry Training Advisory Bodies;  

o Regional and community needs;  
o VET infrastructure and training provider intelligence;  
o Structure of the Western Australian economy – exports, regional economies;  
o Labour market trends and projections – casualisation, skill shortages and priorities;  
o Demographic factors – population trends and projections;  
o Distribution of educational qualifications;  
o State Government priorities – regional development, technology, industry policy;  
o The needs and characteristics of equity groups.  
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In addition to the information provided via the State Training Profile, the College undertakes 
continuing consultation with the community and industry through Industry Advisory 
Committees, Regional Advisory Committees and Indigenous Education, Employment and 
Training Committees to determine their training needs.  This information then influences the 
development of the College’s Profile and allows the College to meet their needs. 

Therefore, as the College’s Profile is determined based on the training needs of our clients, 
assessments against both overall achievement of College Profile and achievement against 
targets set for delivery in individual industry groups provide indicators of the College’s 
effectiveness in meeting the training needs of the region. 

1.4.1 Overall Achievement of Profiled Delivery 

This measure indicates the degree to which the College was able to achieve the total number 
of planned Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) as agreed in the College’s target purchasing 
Matrix, outlined in the Delivery and Performance Agreement with the Department of 
Education and Training.  

This indicates the extent to which Central West TAFE is meeting the training needs of the 
community and of the state. The following table presents a summary of the achievement of 
SCH against the planned SCH during 2006.  The planned SCH are obtained from the 2006 
Central West TAFE Delivery and Performance Agreement with the Department of Education 
and Training (including Addenda).  Achieved SCH are obtained from the February 2007 state 
AVETMISS collection set for 2006 delivery. 

 
Table Four :  Achievement of College Profile 2006, Planned vs Achieved SCH 
 

 Planned SCH Achieved SCH % Achieved 

2002 890,464 890,783 100.04% 

2003 894,916 902,498 100.85% 

2004 894,866 895,310 100.05% 

2005 887,098 884,528 99.7% 

2006 889,049 874,016* 98.3% 

   
* In 2006 the College delivered an actual total of 883,981 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) against a 
planned total of 889,049 SCH, that is, 99.4%. However, of the actual SCH a total of 9,965 SCH were 
achieved in industry groups where a “hard ceiling” exists. Delivery of SCH above the hard ceiling is not 
recognised by the Department of Education and Training as achieved SCH against the planned 
delivery target 
 
1.4.2 Achievement of Profiled Delivery by Industry Group 
 
The College aims to provide training that meets the needs of clients. Achievement of Profiled 
Delivery by Industry Group provides a more detailed indication of the extent to which Central 
West TAFE is responding to the demand for training within industry groups.  Demand can 
vary within an industry group, particularly in a diverse regional training environment, so 
variations between planned and achieved Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) within industry 
groups are evident. The following table presents a summary of the achievement of SCH 
against Department of Education and Training Industry Group in 2006.  The planned SCH 
are obtained from the 2006 Central West TAFE Delivery and Performance Agreement with 
the Department of Education and Training (including Addenda).  Achieved SCH are obtained 
from the February 2007 state AVETMISS collection set for 2006 delivery. Planned and 
achieved SCH for 2005 are also provided for comparison. 
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Table Five :  Achievement of College Profile 2006 by Department of Education and Training 
Industry Group 
 

WADT Group 2005 
Planned 
SCH 

2005 
Achieved 
SCH 

2006 
Planned 
SCH 

2006 
Achieved 
SCH 

2006 % 
Achieved 

01A Recreation, Sports and Entertainment 14,172 12,205 10,560 10,621 100.6% 

01B Visual and Performing Arts 24,981 24,460 26,411 19,880 75.3% 

01C Design 320 0 - - - 

02A Automotive 43,097 29,333 32,455 43,691 134.6% 

03A Building and Construction 45,210 51,066 57,315 63,766 111.3% 

03B Surveying and Building 19,100 12,890 19,652 6,480 33.0% 

04A Community Service Workers 42,241 44,187 46,044 40,705 88.4% 

04B Education and Childcare 38,550 42,045 38,940 47,290 121.4% 

04C Health 33,816 28,595 24,676 17,454 70.7% 

05A Finance Insurance Property Service Workers 2,300 2,424 3,710 1,851 49.9% 

06A Food Trades and Processing 2,903 13,788 11,725 8,223 70.1% 

07A Clothing, Footwear and Soft Furnish.  5,840 5,855 6,000 5,540 92.3% 

07B Furniture Manufacture 15,200 8,696 9,420 8,467 89.9% 

09A Engineering and Drafting 4,760 2,706 3,624 3,920 108.2% 

09B Metal and Mining 41,410 48,315 42,782 55,579 129.9% 

10A Animal Care - - 12,000 8,980 74.8% 

10B Forestry, Farming and Landcare 75,209 96,233 67,382 91,866 136.3% 

10C Fishing 7,811 3,865 2,560 3,589 140.2% 

10D Horticulture 19,492 10,428 9,720 7,989 82.2% 

12A Personal Services 18,688 17,834 24,256 25,986 107.1% 

12B Retail 14,984 10,678 13,042 8,141 62.4% 

13A Cooking 18,732 15,690 15,664 14,541 92.8% 

13B Hospitality 15,050 9,089 15,990 9,985 62.4% 

13C Tourism 4,834 900 10,268 4,808 46.8% 

13D Travel Agent 8,600 7,505 - - - 

14A Transport Trades, Storage and Associated 24,240 23,370 28,995 27,640 95.3% 

15A Electrical and Electronic Engineering 20,816 7,646 10,416 0 0.0% 

15B Electrical Trades 28,216 31,402 30,432 41,668 136.9% 

16A Accounting and other Business Services 27,425 39,340 47,275 38,380 81.2% 

16B Management 5,060 2,420 13,830 15,160 109.6% 

16C Office and Clerical 54,537 54,120 49,953 65,435 131.0% 

17A Computing 79,192 67,729 64,864 56,910 87.7% 

18A Science and Technical Workers 15,570 12,434 12,100 15,742 130.1% 

19B Adult Literacy/ESL 73,420 71,960 54,651 49,220 90.1% 

19E Targeted Access and Participation Courses 41,322 81,033 72,337 64,474 89.1% 

Less Hard Ceiling and Prison Delivery Profile Breaches    -9,965  

Total 887,098 884,528 889,049 874,016 98.3% 

 
In 2006 the College delivered 98.3% of its planned Profile delivery, as identified through the 
College’s target purchasing matrix. This compares with 99.7% in 2005. As outlined above the 
College delivered 883,981 SCH in 2006, however the breaches above hard ceilings of a total 
of 9,965 SCH resulted in 1.7% under-achievement of its planned Profile delivery. In terms of 
Achieved SCH the College showed a decrease of 10,512 SCH in 2006, compared to 2005.   
 
Planned vs Achieved SCH for each Department of Education and Training Industry Group 
provides additional information about delivery activity in each industry area. 
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 EFFICIENCY INDICATORS 
 
2.1 Average Cost per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) 
 
The overall cost per Student Curriculum, Hour (SCH) is an efficiency measure that shows the 
aggregate unit cost of delivery output per SCH, based on the delivery costs as detailed in the 
2006 Financial Statements. 
 
The aggregate unit cost is calculated by determining the total cost of services, as reported in 
the College’s Statement of Financial Performance, and divided by the actual SCH delivered 
for profiled (883,981 SCH) and non-profile (114,344 SCH) activities.   
 
Table Six : Cost per Student Curriculum Hour ($/SCH) 
 

 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

$ Per SCH  $19.17 $18.62 $20.25 $20.74 $21.06 

 
 
The cost per SCH has increased slightly by $0.32 from the 2005 figure.  
 
The interpretation of the Efficiency Performance Indicator Cost per Student Curriculum Hour 
needs to be considered in light of the total College profile of training delivery. The cost of 
delivery varies for different industry groupings for all training providers. The cost of delivering 
a course requiring heavy machinery, for example, is more expensive then the cost of 
delivering a paper-based course. In addition the Central West TAFE services a region of 
613,438 square kilometers with delivery in remote areas being considerably more expensive 
than at a campus located in a region of significant population. 
 
 



CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
INCOME STATEMENT

2007
$      

Estimate

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 13,059,937

Supplies and services 5,833,061

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,200,687

Grants and subsidies 166,409

Capital user charge 1,568,630

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 12,000

Other expenses 1,220,977

Cost of sales 270,500

Total Cost of Services 23,332,201

Income

Revenue

Fee for service 987,963

Student charges and fees 1,489,445

Sales 351,486

Ancillary trading 269,771

Commonwealth grants and contributions 55,711

Interest revenue 150,536

Other revenue 280,015

Total Revenue 3,584,927

Total income other than income from State Government 3,584,927

NET COST OF SERVICES -19,747,274

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 16668491
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 1077

Assets assumed/(transferred)
Resources received free of charge 810862

Total income from State Government 17,480,430

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD -2,266,844



CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
BALANCE SHEET

2007
$

Estimate

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,950,000

Inventories 116,301

Receivables 705,720

Other current assets 86,142

Total Current Assets 2,858,163

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 40,275,566

Other non-current assets 20,000

Total Non-Current Assets 40,295,566
TOTAL ASSETS 43,153,729

 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 5,000

Provisions 1,208,638

Other current liabilities 662,719

Total Current Liabilities 1,876,357

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 1,461,620

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,461,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,337,977

NET ASSETS 39,815,752

EQUITY

Contributed Equity 15,113,125

Reserves 7,871,753

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 15,883,700

TOTAL EQUITY 38,868,578



CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
CHANGES IN EQUITY

2007
$      

Estimate

 

Balance of equity at start of period 37,305,422

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Balance at start of period 11,883,125

Capital contribution 3,230,000

Balance at end of period 15,113,125

RESERVES

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of period 7,271,753

Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation 600,000

Balance at end of period 7,871,753

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)

Balance at start of period 18,150,544

Surply/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period -2,266,844

Balance at end of period 15,883,700

Balance of equity at end of period 38,868,578

 

Total income and expense for the period -1,666,844



CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2007

$        Estimate

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 16,666,866
Net cash provided by State Government 16,666,866

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee benefits -11,953,270

Supplies and services -5,027,555

Capital User Charge -1,522,743

Grants and subsidies -166,409

GST payments on purchases -559,585

Other payments -1,491,477

Receipts

Fee for service 987,963

Student fees and charges 1,489,445

Ancillary trading 269,771

Commonwealth grants and contributions 55,711

Interest received 150,536

GST receipts on sales 230,516

GST receipts from taxation authority 279,175

Other receipts 631,501

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities -16,626,421

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of non-current physical assets -400,000

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities -400,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents -359,555

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,309,555

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 1,950,000



Ratio 
Number

RATIOS Benchmark
2005 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009

Audited Preliminary Estimate Estimate
Explanatory 

Notes
Forecast Forecast

1a Adjusted  Operating Result ($) + / - 3% -$526,455 -$852,288 -$823,689 -$1,766,844 1 -$1,127,876 -$978,710

1b 
Adjusted Operating Margin (as a % 
of total income) 

+/- 3% -2.55% -3.89% -3.85% -8.39%
2

-5.54% -4.73%

2a $ Cost per SCH N/A $20.86 $23.24 $23.00 $23.35 $21.98 $22.19

2b
Cost per SCH (%movement from 
prior year) 

+/- 5% 5.66% 11.42% -1.04% 1.52%
3

-5.84% 0.95%

3a Working Capital  Note: (2) See notes 1.62 1.45 1.68 1.52
4

1.52 1.52

3b Quick Ratio  1.0 - 2.0 1.10 0.75 1.14 1.04 5 1.04 1.04

3c Quick Ratio (CUC adjusted) 1.0 - 2.0 1.10 1.27 1.14 1.04 6 1.04 1.04

4
Average Employee Entitlement 
Accrued (current) in weeks

 Max 8 weeks 6.51 4.76 6.29 4.81 4.76 4.72

5
Sustainability of Cash Reserve in 
Days   Note: (1) 

30 - 60 days 40.26 44.30 38.55 36.03 35.68 35.32

Please use Worksheet "P" for Explanatory Notes.

Note: (1)  The formulae has been adjusted to exclude CUC expenses from 2005 onwards.

(2)  Metro: 1.0 - 1.5  / Remote and Regional: 1.5 - 2.0

FINANCIAL INDICATORS (RATIOS)

(E) Ratio



Supporting Notes for the S42 Estimates.

Income Statement
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 Reduction in funding for capital user charge to be abolished in July 2007.

Reduction in CAT (Competitive Allocated Training) tenders in 2007.

Reduction in exam fee revenue in 2007.

Additional Batavia Coast Maritime Institute operating fees from Department of Fisheries
in 2007.

Reduction in lease arrangements with Edith Cowan University that ceased in 2006.

Increase in salaries based on award increases (lecturing 3.6% and non-teaching 4%) in
2007.

Increase in expenditure for Batavia Coast Maritime Institute as they come on board for a
full year. As well as increase in contracts such as gardening and cleaning. Monthly tax
invoices from ETSSC (Education and Training Shared Service Centre) are expected to be
$300,000 for 2007.

Increase in depreciation due to Batavia Coast Maritime Insitutue coming on board in
2006.  A $3.22m building refurbishment due to come on board by end of 2007.

Reduction in expenditure for capital user charge to be abolished in July 2007.

(L)Notes_IS



Supporting Notes for the S42 Estimates.
Balance Sheet

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 Land and building revaluation estimate for 2007.

Increase in leave entitlements by award increases of 4% for 2007.

Drawdown on cash reserves and term deposit to fund expenditure.

Additional $3.22m building refurbishment in 2007.

Reduction in unallocated assets at year end in 2007.

Reduction in funding accrual for capital user charge to be abolished in July 2007.

Represents unpaid creditors at year end in 2007.

Increase in leave entitlements by award increases of 4% for 2007.

Reduction in expenditure accural for capital user charge to be abolished in July 2007.

(M)Notes_BS



Supporting Notes for the S42 Estimates.
Statement of Changes in Equity

1

2

3

In 2006 $10,204,940 Batavia Coast Maritime Institute came onto the balance sheet. In
2007 $3,220,000 building refurbishments for skills shortage areas to come onto the
balance sheet.

In 2006 land and building revaluations reflected the local property market. Conservative
estimates for 2007.

In 2006 the asset threshold was increased from $1,000 to $5,000 to align with the
Department of Education and Training's policy. The written down value of assets less
than $5,000 was offset against accumulated surplus.

(N)Notes_CE



Supporting Notes for the S42 Estimates.
Cash Flow Statement

1

2

3

4

5

6

Reduction in CAT (Competitive Allocated Training) tenders in 2007.

Reduction in exam fee revenue in 2007, debtor invoices.

Capital user charge funding for four quarters Sept 2006, Dec 2006, Mar 2007 & Jun 2007,
plus additionally funding through DPA.

Salary increases due to award rates, plus payroll tax from Dec 2006 paid in 2007.

Increase in expenditure for Batavia Coast Maritime Institute as they come on board for a
full year. As well as increase in contracts such as gardening and cleaning. Monthly tax
invoices from ETSSC (Education and Training Shared Service Centre) are expected to be
$300,000 for 2007.

Capital user charge to be paid for four quarters Sept 2006, Dec 2006, Mar 2007 & Jun
2007.

(O)Notes_CF 



Supporting Notes for the S42 Estimates.
Notes to Ratio

1

2

3

4

5

6

Quick Ratio of 0.75 fell below the benchmark of 1-2 in 2006 due to capital user charge
accrued expense. In 2007, the ratio is predicted to be 1.04, within benchmarks.

Quick Ratio (CUC adjusted) of 1.27 is within the benchmark of 1-2 in 2006 due to the
removal of the capital user charge accrued expense from the ratio. In 2007, the ratio is
predicted to be 1.04, within benchmarks.

Increase in deficit directly attributable to a $256,000 reduction in CAT revenue and an
additional $300,000 ETSSC expenditure.  As well as reduction in non-DPA grant funding.

Adjusted operating margin (as a % of total income) has increased to -8.4% due to above
reasons.

Cost per SCH increased from 2005 to 2006 by 11.42% in 2006 due to a reduction in total
delivered SCH and an increase in total cost of services. 2007 is predicted to be similar to
2006.

Working capital of 1.45 fell slightly below the benchmark of 1.5-2.0 in 2006 due to high
value of accrued expenses. In 2007, the ratio is predicted to be 1.52, within
benchmarks.

(P)Notes_Ratio



Capital User Charge (CUC)

Calendar Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

Preliminary Estimate Forecast Forecast

Net asset 37,305,422  39,815,752  N/A  N/A linked to Balace Sheet

Less Exempt asset at the beginning of the year (manually input)

- … 0 0 N/A N/A

- … 0 0 N/A N/A

0 0 N/A N/A

Add/Less Asset Revaluation Reserve
ARR  in balance sheet as at: 30-Dec-05 248,233 30-Dec-06 7,271,753 N/A N/A linked to Balace Sheet
ARR  in balance sheet as at: 30-Dec-06 7,271,753 30-Dec-07 7,871,753 N/A N/A linked to Balace Sheet

Net Increase/(Decrease) in ARR 7,023,520 600,000 N/A N/A linked to Income Statement

Adjusted Net Asset 30,281,902 39,215,752 N/A N/A
CUC expense for the year (8%) 2422552.16 3137260.16 N/A N/A linked to Income Statement & 

State Reconcilation

Financial Year 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009

Average CUC expense - 2779906.2 N/A N/A

Note: Advice received from Treasury is that the CUC will be abolished by July 1, 2007.

(Q)CUC



Expenses 2006 2007 movements eliminations 2007 2008 movements eliminations 2008 2009 movements eliminations

Employee benefits expense 12,683,236 13,059,937 -102,701 12,957,236 13,059,937 13,190,536 13,190,536 13,190,536 13,322,442 13,322,442

Supplies and services 5,485,121 5,833,061 148,324 5,981,385 5,833,061 5,891,392 -10,000 5,881,392 5,891,392 5,950,306 -10,000 5,940,306

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,171,415 1,200,687 -1,200,687 0 1,200,687 1,200,687 -1,200,687 0 1,200,687 1,200,687 -1,200,687 0

Grants and subsidies 166,409 166,409 166,409 166,409 168,073 168,073 168,073 169,754 169,754

Capital user charge 2,213,752 1,522,743 1,522,743 1,522,743 0 0 0 0 0

Other expenses 1,220,977 1,220,977 1,220,977 1,220,977 1,233,187 1,233,187 1,233,187 1,245,519 1,245,519

Cost of sales 270,439 270,500 270,500 270,500 273,205 273,205 273,205 275,937 275,937

GST payments on services 559,585 565,181 570,833

GST payment to ATO 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

Fee for service -1,190,677 -987,963 -987,963 -987,963 -997,843 -997,843 -997,843 -1,007,821 -1,007,821

Student charges and fees -1,506,933 -1,489,445 -1,489,445 -1,489,445 -1,504,339 -1,504,339 -1,504,339 -1,519,383 -1,519,383

Sales -351,486 -351,486 -351,486 -351,486 -355,001 -355,001 -355,001 -358,551 -358,551

Ancillary trading -196,772 -269,771 -269,771 -269,771 -772,469 -772,469 -772,469 -780,194 -780,194

Commonwealth grants and contributions -55,711 -55,711 -55,711 -55,711 -56,268 -56,268 -56,268 -56,831 -56,831

Interest revenue -150,536 -150,536 -150,536 -150,536 -152,041 -152,041 -152,041 -153,562 -153,562

Other revenue -323,916 -280,015 -280,015 -280,015 -282,815 -282,815 -282,815 -285,643 -285,643

GST receipts on sales -230,516 -232,822 -235,150

GST receipts from ATO -279,175 -281,967 -284,787

18,584,217 0 0

0 0 0

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 11,988 12,000 0 12,000 12,120 0 12,120 12,241 0

Property, plant and equipment 37,246,253 39,270,283 -2,669,839 -400,000 39,270,283 38,584,516 600,687 -400,000 38,584,516 37,515,806 600,687 -400,000

-400,000 0 0

0 0 0
State funds -17312350 -16422604 -1248228 -17,670,832 -16422604 -15200489 -15,200,489 -15200489 -15507932 -15,507,932
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer -1077 -1077 -1,077 -1077 -1,088 -1,088 -1,088 -1,099 -1,099
Resources received free of charge -810863 -810862 -810,862 -810862 -818,971 -818,971 -818,971 -827,160 -827,160

-18,482,771

Inventories 116,302 116,301 -1 -1 116,301 116,301 0 0 116,301 116,301 0 0

Receivables 705,721 705,720 -1 -1 705,720 705,720 0 0 705,720 705,720 0 0

Other current assets 1,334,370 86,142 -1,248,228 1,248,228 0 86,142 86,142 0 0 86,142 86,142 0 0

Other non-current assets 70,526 20,000 -50,526 50,526 0 20,000 20,000 0 0 20,000 20,000 0 0

Payables 1,201 -5,000 -6,201 6,201 0 -5,000 -5,000 0 0 -5,000 -5,000 0 0

Provisions -1,162,153 -1,208,638 -46,485 46,485 0 -1,208,638 -1,208,638 0 0 -1,208,638 -1,208,638 0 0

Other current liabilities -1,910,949 -662,719 1,248,230 -1,248,230 0 -662,719 -662,719 0 0 -662,719 -662,719 0 0

Provisions -1,405,404 -1,461,620 -56,216 56,216 0 -1,461,620 -1,461,620 0 0 -1,461,620 -1,461,620 0 0

Contributed Equity -11,883,125 -15,113,125 -3,230,000 3,230,000 0 -15,113,125 -15,123,125 -10,000 10,000 0 -15,123,125 -15,133,125 -10,000 10,000 0

Reserves -7,271,753 -7,871,753 -600,000 600,000 0 -7,871,753 -8,471,753 -600,000 600,000 0 -8,471,753 -9,071,753 -600,000 600,000 0

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) -18,150,544 -15,683,700 2,466,844 2,466,844 -15,683,700 -13,855,824 1,827,876 1,827,876 -13,855,824 -12,177,114 1,678,710 1,678,710

-1,083,705 -298,554 0 255,462 0 106,678
-276,647 106,678

Cash and cash equivalents 2,309,555 1,808,109 -501,446 1,808,109 1,276,000 -532,109 1,276,000 1,276,000 0
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1. Introduction

The purpose of the S42 Estimates package is to provide a consistent and effective model for 
the preparation of College Annual Estimates for submission to the Minister. The model 
consists of the 'Annual Estimates', 'Supplementary Information' and 'Financial Indicators'. 
The supplementary information and the financial indicators are required to assist with the 
review and approval process. These were designed in consultation with the Colleges. 

An independent evaluation of the appropriateness of the financial assessment indicators 
with the establishment of benchmarks for the purpose of assessing College's Annual 
Estimates submitted to the Minister under Section 42 of the FAAA, was conducted in 2001.  

Background

Colleges are required to prepare and submit annual estimates to the Minister by 
31 January each year under Section 42 of the FAAA.

Section 42 of the FAAA is set out below:

Estimates of statutory authorities
42. (1) Unless the Treasurer otherwise directs in writing, the accountable authority of a 

statutory authority shall cause annual estimates of the financial operations of the 
statutory authority to be prepared under such headings and in such manner as the 
Treasurer may approve or direct.

(2) The estimates prepared under subsection (1) shall be submitted by the accountable 
authority for the approval of the Minister not later than one month after the 
commencement of the financial year to which the estimates relate.

(3) The Minister may give the approval referred to in subsection (2) or may reject the 
estimates and require the accountable authority to prepare and submit amended 
estimates for the approval of the Minister within such time as the Minister directs.

Section 42 does not specify which financial statements should be provided in support of 
the College submissions, and consequently a standard format package was developed 
reflecting a summarised version of a college's annual financial statements. 

The Department has an advisory role to the Minister in the approval of the College's 
Section 42 estimates.  The Minister forwards the Section 42 estimates to the Department,

which then undertakes some reasonableness checking based on historical data trends,
indicators and comments provided by the College, and provides the Minister with
a financial analysis and recommendation for approval.

The Minister's approval applies only to one year being the Annual Estimate.

College Section 42 Estimates Guidelines



Financial Indicators

For 2007, eight key financial indicators have been developed to assess the Estimates in consultation 
with College representatives. The financial indicators broadly cover financial performance 
liquidity and stability. These ratios are defined in sections "2" & "3" (Refer to Worksheets "iii" & "iv"). 

Benchmarking

The benchmarks were originally developed by independent consultants, and are based on  
historical College data and relevant commercial practice. These have been refined over time,
for example to take into account changes in accounting standards.

When the results of one of the financial indicator ratios fall outside the benchmark range, 
Colleges are requested to provide comments/explanation - giving an indication if the 
trend is likely to continue and whether the result is of any concern or due to known factors. 
The comments should be provided in the relevant worksheet (i.e. Worksheet "L" to 
Worksheet "P") . 

Alternatively, the College may wish to provide explanatory notes/information in a separate 
Word document. 

The Estimates and Information Supporting S42 Estimates

Essential Information to be provided by the Colleges.

The information to be provided  by the Colleges will consist of the historical, estimate 
and forecast figures  for (Estimate represents the estimates to be approved by the Minister 
and the forecast are the 2 outyears which are provided as supplementary information. ):

a. The Income Statement (Worksheet "A").

b. The Balance Sheet (Worksheet "B").

c. The Statement of Changes in Equity (Worksheet "C").

d. The Cash Flow Statement (Worksheet "D").

e. Other Supplementary Information - Ratios (Worksheet "E").

 The ratios included in this package are:
-  Adjusted Operating Result (expressed in $),
-  Adjusted Operating Margin (expressed as a % of total income), 
-  $ cost per SCH, 
-  $ cost per SCH (% movement from prior year), 
-  Working Capital, 
-  Quick Ratio 
-  Average Employee Entitlements Accrued (current) and 
-  Sustainability of Cash reserve in Days. 

         
These ratios are used as the key indicator for assessing the Balance Sheet and the 
Income Statement of the College's projected data.



Included in the above is the following information to support their Section 42 submissions
(Referred to as Supplementary Information.):

a. Any other relevant information to any of the statements above should be clearly 
 numbered in the explanatory notes column and clearly explained in relevant 

provided Worksheets (i.e. Worksheet "L" to Worksheet "P".).

Alternatively, the College may wish to provide explanatory notes/information
in a separate word document. 

         
b. Prior year results (for the two years) preceding the Estimate year. One year 

will be the audited and the recent year will be the preliminary (any significant 
changes to those results need to be advised to the Department for incorporation
into the final submission to the Minister)

c. A forecast of the 2 years subsequent to the Estimate Year.
         

d. Comments supporting the Annual Estimates and the Supplementary Information. 
The scope and extent of supporting comments should depend on the nature of the 
issues arising from the data and ratio analysis. A brief commentary should accompany 
the Section 42 submission, summarising key operational and financial matters relevant 
to each College's performance and forecast results. This commentary is to include an 
explanation for those ratios that are outside of the benchmark range.

e. Information which is relevant to the following reconciliations:
-   State Fund Reconciliation (Worksheet "H")
-   Capital Works Reconciliation (Worksheet "I") 

f. Other information required to provide details for: 
-   Depreciation (Worksheet "F")
-   Contributed Equity (Worksheet "G")
-   Finance Leases (Worksheet "J")

g. Any other information which is relevant and important for the Minister to be
aware of in approving their estimates.

          
h. Key assumptions supporting the Section 42 Estimates (and related projections).

Refer to Worksheet "K".

 Any questions or queries regarding this package should be referred to the Department
 by contacting the Resource Analysis and Statutory Reporting Branch within the 

 Financial Accounting Directorate.



2. Definitions of the Financial Indicators.

A. Operating Ratio 

The financial indicators for assessing operating performance are set out below: 

(The formulae are provided in section "3" and the benchmarks are in "Worksheet C")

1. Adjusted Operating Result (in $ and expressed as a % of total income -  

adjusted for building depreciation) 

(1a) In order to assess the extent to which a college can meet expenditure commitments 

from its income, the operating result is adjusted to exclude items that distort the 

operating surplus or deficit, specifically the annual building depreciation expense. 

(1b) The Colleges vary in size considerably, therefore the operating result 

should also be assessed as a percentage of total income to give an indication of 

materiality relevant to that College.

   

These operating ratios represent a measure of the financial performance of 

an entity. For entities operating commercially in the government arena, it is 

appropriate that income and expenses broadly match each other, which should 

result in a break even operating result.

2. $ Cost per SCH (% movement from prior year)

(2a) To determine the efficiency of the Colleges in providing SCH, and to identify any 

problems that may be emerging in this area, the cost of providing SCH is

compared against previous years. The total cost of services is divided by

the total SCH provided for the year.

(2b) In assessing the cost of SCH for each College, there are significant variations 

between the sizes of individual Colleges and the mix of activities to be considered. 

In general, it would be anticipated that there would be economies of scale at the 

larger Colleges resulting in lower cost per SCH. For this reason, the annual

movements for individual Colleges are compared.

(iii) Definitions 17



B. Balance Sheet

The proposed ratios for assessing the Balance Sheet are set out below:

3a. Working capital

The working capital ratio is a traditional measure for assessing whether an entity 

has the ability to meet short-term financial obligations (over a 12 month period).

3b. Quick Ratio

The Quick Ratio is a measure of a colleges ability to meet its liability obligations 

at short notice.  

4.  Average Employee Entitlements Accrued (current)

Whole of government policy requires active management of employee's 

accrued annual and long service leave entitlements.  

5.  Sustainability of Cash Holdings in Days.

Sustainability of cash reserves provides a further measure of College liquidity by 

measuring how many days expenditure existing cash resources will cover, 

assuming there is no income from any source.  The denominator is adjusted so 

that non-cash expense items such as depreciation/amortisation and resources

received free of charge & CUC are excluded. 

(iii) Definitions 18



3. Definition of Ratios:

1a. Adjusted Operating = Surplus / (deficit) for the period + Building Depreciation

Result

1b. Net Adjusted Operating =

Margin (%) Total Income

2a $ Cost per SCH =

2b % movement in  $cost per SCH

3a. Working Capital =

3b. Cash Ratio =

4 Average Employee =

Entitlements Accrued (current)

5 Sustainability of Cash =

Reserve in Days

Note:

The Benchmark are provided in "Worksheet E" together with the list of the required Financial Indicators. 

Cash Assets + Restricted  Cash

Adjusted Operating Result

Total Cost Of Services

Total SCH

Op Exp. Per SCH (CY) - Op Exp. Per SCH (LY)

Op Exp. Per SCH (LY)

Provisions (current)

Employee Benefits Expenses

Cash Assets + Restricted Cash

Total Cost of Services - Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  - Resources Received Free of Charge - CUC

Total Current Liabilities

Total Current Assets

Total Current Liabilities 

* 52 weeks

* 365 days

(iv) Def_Ratio



Depreciation and Amortisation Breakdown

Please provide a breakdown of depreciation and amortisation, eg:

2005 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009

Audited Preliminary Estimate Estimate Forecast Forecast

$ $ $ $ $ $

Depreciation

- Building -206505 470728 750293 500000 500000 500000

- Plant, equipment and vehicles 968460 700687 968460 700687 700687 700687

- Infrastructure

- Leased plant, equipment and vehicles

Amortisation

- Intangible assets

- Research and development costs
761955 1171415 1718753 1200687 1200687 1200687 linked to Income Statement

(F) Depreciation



Contributed Equity

Please provide a breakdown of Contributed Equity eg:

2005 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009

Audited Preliminary Estimate Estimate Forecast Forecast

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at start of period 1659343 1670025 13008025 11883125 15113125 15123125

- Distribution to Owner 0 0 0 0

- Contribution by Owner 10682 10213100 3230000 10000 10000

- Other
1670025 11883125 13008025 15113125 15123125 15133125 - linked to Balance Sheet

0 0 0 0 0 0 - Check for Statement of Change in Equity
CHECK       

G) Contributed Equity



Please provide a breakdown of State Funds, eg:

2006 2007 2008 2009

Preliminary Estimate Forecast Forecast

$ $ $ $

- DPA
      - Total Recurrent Funding including Maintenance Funds as per Cash Flow from DET (*1839, 1863) 12654040 13023451 13283920 13549598

      - Minor Works from DET Cash Flow (*1861, Project 1775) 112892 112892 112892 112892

      - GEHA funding from DET Cash Flow (*1843) 66944 83208 83208 83208

- Non-DPA grants from DET 1432818 800000 800000 800000

- CUC funding from DET (*1838) 2213752 1568630

- Superannuation funding from DET/Oracle (*1828, 1829) 965352 1003966 1044125 1085890

- Other (profile clawback, non-teaching salary increase) -133448 76344 76344 76344
17312350 16668491.2 15400488.7 15707932.1

* Account Type   1839 - Grants - TAFE College Profile Delivery Funding linked to Income Statement

1843 - Grants - GEHA Recurrent Payments - TAFE Colleges

1861 - Capital Grants - Public Providers

1863 - Building Maintenance Funding - TAFE Colleges

linked to cuc sheet

State Funds Reconciliation

(H) State Funds Reconciliation



Support for Capital Works

2006 2007 2008 2009

Preliminary Estimate Forecast Forecast

$ $ $ $

Capital Works transferred comprises of:

Universal access 8160 10000 10000 10000

Batavia Coast Maritime Institute 10204940

College to Complete Skills shortage building refurbishments 3220000

- …….

- …….

- …….

- …….

- …….

- …….
10213100 3230000 10000 10000 - linked to Contributed Equity 

TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE   worksheet

(I) Capital Works Reconc. 



Finance Leases

Proposed Finance Lease for 2007

Details $ New/Rollover Other details

College to complete

0

(J) Finance Leases



Working Paper – Financial Data and Key Assumptions Contained in the Estimates

The Section 42 estimates (and related projections) are developed based on key assumptions 
(financial and non-financial).  The purpose of this attachment is to briefly capture all of the 
essential elements considered by the College in formulating the financial projections.

The notes are for illustrative purposes only and are not intended to represent all key 
assumptions underlying the estimates of the College.

1. External Factors:
a) Inflation rate
b) Government policy on expenditure priorities
c) Education and Training Shared Services Centre

Comments:
Cost of shared services is considered to have a significant impact on the College

2. Revenue Forecasts (growth / reduction):
a)  Outline projected revenue growth for the various categories of revenue eg

       -  commercial activities
       -  international fees
       -  student fees
    

b) Outline the revenue growth under the Delivery and Performance Agreement with the 
Department of Education and Training

    
c) Department of Education and Training assistance with any major initiatives and 

projects (eg investment in technology and infrastructure)

Comments:
Projected revenue reduction due to reduction in CAT tenders.

(K) Key Assumptions



3. Expenditure Forecasts (growth / reduction):
a) Outline salary increases (including level of funding by the Department)

            
b) Outline projections for the major cost drivers

- Labour costs
- Occupancy costs
- Other operating costs

Comments:
(please insert more lines to make more comments)

4. Financial Management:
a) Key College financial management policies eg

       - Outline the strategic view of the College in terms of the level of cash reserves to be 
         maintained 

- Leave liability reduction initiatives

Comments:
(please insert more lines to make more comments)

5. Major Investments:
a) Key events such major ‘one-off’ developments and major initiatives
b) Capital projects and equipment
c) Technology investment
d) Technology upgrades

Comments:
(please insert more lines to make more comments)

(K) Key Assumptions







































 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
CENTRAL WEST TAFE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006  
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial 
position of the Central West TAFE at 31 December 2006 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in accordance 
with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s Instructions;  

(ii) the controls exercised by the College provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, 
expenditure and investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and 
the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

(iii) the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the College are 
relevant and appropriate to help users assess the College’s performance and fairly 
represent the indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2006. 

 
Scope 
The Governing Council was responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate 
systems of internal control, for preparing the financial statements and performance indicators, 
and complying with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and other relevant written 
law. The Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 was repealed and replaced by the 
Financial Management Act 2006 and the Auditor General Act 2006 from 1 February 2007. This 
did not impact on the agency’s operations or the audit work conducted during the year ended  
31 December 2006. 

The financial statements consist of the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes 
in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, I have independently audited the accounts, 
financial statements and performance indicators to express an opinion on the financial 
statements, controls and performance indicators. This was done by testing selected samples of 
the evidence. Further information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice 
statement. Refer "http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf". 

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and 
performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit 
does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should 
identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the 
financial statements and performance indicators. 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
ACTING AUDITOR GENERAL 
19 March 2007 


